
11005217

\-_

Inc

2010 Annual Report



inc

Securities and Exchange Commission

100 Street N.E

Washington D.C 20549

January 2010

VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS

Re Emtec Inc

FileNo 0-32789

Ladies and Gentlemen

We submit herewith pursuant to Rule 14a-3c promulgated under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act seven copies

of our Annual Report for our fiscal year ended August 31 2010 copies of which

accompanied our proxy statement for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled

to be convened on January 20 2011 Pursuant to Rule 4a-6 of the Exchange Act

definitive copies of such proxy statement were filed on December 29 2010 with the

Securities Exchange Commission via Edgar

Kindly acknowledge receipt of this letter and its accompanying documentation by
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Dear Fellow Emtec Investors and all Emtec Stakeholders

It is with great pleasure that am able to share with you continued progress on the transformation

of our business to global IT services company in 2010 Once again am happy to share with

you successes and challenges of the past year and how we made progress on the framework laid

out We made great strides this year and am very pleased with our progress and very proud of

our whole team

would like to first address the exciting news about expanding our team this year We placed

more emphasis on building team which could help the Company grow and gain market share

We introduced new sales members in our federal sales team which resulted in some major new

wins with several different government agencies We were also pleased to have extraordinary

talent join us from both our SDI and Sark acquisitions and very senior team of Information

Management consultants joined us from Xcellor Finally had the pleasure of welcoming two

new members to our executive management team with substantial experience in building and

running large IT services organizations Both have helped immensely in designing our strategy

and in attracting top talent In 2011 we will have the opportunity to strengthen our team further

as our platform has become an exciting place to build career

On the client front we had some exciting wins which we expect will pay dividends for years to

come and were key testament to the success of our transformation strategy We won three

major Federal contracts at the USDA FBI and the Air Force as well as managed services

contract with the City of Jacksonville We were also selected by leading specialty

pharmaceutical manufacturer in Montreal Quebec to provide Value Based Management services

to help them align their IT infrastructure to their business strategy In addition for long term

procurement services client we helped them select an ERP solution and execute their

implementation Our cross selling has picked up immensely as we continue to train our sales

force on our portfolio We continue to penetrate and radiate within our client base

In 2010 we continued to expand our service offerings delivery capabilities client base and

geographic reach In this respect we to added to our portfolio through acquisitions and launching

new practices Our acquisition strategy has been integral to our transformation process by

enriching our services portfolio During the year we added three teams to the Emtec Family The

acquisition of Secure Data Inc brought application consulting services primarily to our federal

government clients as well as some key clients in the commercial space The acquisition of

SARK Infotech Private Limited provided new offshore delivery capabilities to our commercial

practice and expanded our global presence We launched new practice through the addition of

the management team in our Information Management/Business Intelligence practice that brought

enhanced high-end consulting capabilities Finally we launched center of Excellence for our IT

Services Management practice

Looking at the financials for the year ended August 31 2010 this transformation we have

undertaken resulted in nearly $3.0 million increase in our overall gross profit fueled by two

factors $2.6 million increase in our service and consulting revenue and 4.4% gross profit

margin increase in our service and consulting gross profit During the year we saw our Federal

Business rebound nicely our Education Business continue to shift in favor of services and our

Canadian ERP and Application Development Practices continue to grow Our successes did not

lead to an increase in the earnings of the Company however as mentioned previously we are

focused on investing in building fundamental value During 2010 we felt it was prudent to utilize

some of our profits to improve our platform for the future



2010 also brought challenges Early in 2010 we recognized that our commercial infrastructure

business was having problems re-emerging from the recession We restructured this business and

am happy to report that this business is once again profitable The sales force is now focused on

selling higher margin recurring revenue services to our existing base of clients

We feel that strong viable Company with solid base of value added services will present new

alternative competitor to larger system integrators and strong partner to boutique consulting

firms We are focusing on Fortune 2000 clients or public sector clients with similar IT spend

In addition we have strong presence in the K- 12 education market and will continue to expand

our solutions to these clients We will focus on building fundamental value and we will continue

to adjust our capital structure to include prudent leverage that will help us improve equity returns

for our stockholders While we are disappointed by the stocks valuation in the market we feel

that building underlying fundamental value will eventually create solid return for our

stockholders

Within the Company have outlined five areas of focus going forward profits clients

technologies and delivery process improvement and shared services and partner of choice We
have taken on major initiatives in each of these areas We are examining costs at all levels and

driving towards higher margin business We are expanding our reach to our commercial clients

through expanding our global delivery model and we will enrich our services portfolio through

building new offerings building centers of excellence and making prudent acquisitions We are

putting in place solid ERP infrastructure for Emtec and we will find new methods to ensure

quality throughout the organization including scorecards for our clients and improved benefits

for our associates

In closing thank all of you for your attention and support Our associates continue to help our

clients make advances on all fronts Our lender vendors and partners have been fully supportive

of our plans to expand our business and we thank them for their excellent cooperation and

service And finally Id like to thank our stockholders and we ask for patience in producing the

returns you expect

We will continue to work on all your behalves to build stronger Emtec for years to come

Is Dinesh Desai

Dinesh Desai

Chairman CEO and President
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References in this Annual Report to we us or our are to Emtec Inc and its subsidiaries unless the context specifies or requires

otherwise

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

You should carefully review the information contained in this Annual Report and in other reports or documents that we file from time

to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC In this Annual Report we state our beliefs of future events and of

our future financial performance In some cases you can identify those so-called forward-looking statements by words such as

may will should expects plans anticipates believes estimates predicts potential or continue or the

negative of those words and other comparable words You should be aware that those statements are only our predictions Actual

events or results may differ materially In evaluating those statements you should specifically consider various factors including the

risks discussed in this Annual Report for the year ended August 31 2010 and other reports or documents that we file from time to time
with the SEC Those factors may cause our actual results to differ materially from any of our forward-looking statements All

forward-looking statements attributable to us or any person acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by this

cautionary statement

Assumptions relating to budgeting marketing and other management decisions are subjective in many respects and thus susceptible

to interpretations and periodic revisions based on actual experience and business developments the impact of which may cause us to

alter our marketing capital expenditure or other budgets which may in turn affect our business financial position results of

operations and cash flows
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PART

Item Business

Introduction

Emtec Inc Delaware corporation was formed on January 17 2001 and is an information technology IT services provider We

provide consulting application services and infrastructure services to public sector and commercial clients The Companys client

base is comprised of departments of the United States and Canadas federal state/provincial and local governments schools and

commercial businesses throughout the United States and Canada

Over the last year we have transformed the business by structuring our sales efforts to specific client niche groups referred to as

vertical industry practices verticals such as the federal government
school districts state and local governments and commercial

business as well as adding and acquiring new technology practices horizontals in the areas of strategic IT consulting business

application services and infrastructure consulting and services This restructuring has helped transform our business into broad based

IT services of lifecycle technology services and managed technology services

Our primary business objective is to become leading single-source provider of high quality and innovative consulting business

application services managed services and IT infrastructure

We service our client base from leased facilities in California Georgia Florida Illinois New Jersey Pennsylvania Virginia in the

United States India and Canada

Our headquarters and principal offices are located at 11 Diamond Road Springfield New Jersey telephone 973 376-4242 Our

website is www.emtecinc.com We have made available free of charge through our website our annual reports on Form 10-K

quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K other reports and amendments to those reports filed or furnished

pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended as soon as reasonably practicable after such

material was electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC The information on our website is not part of or incorporated by

reference in this Annual Report

Recent Acquisitions

On March 20 2008 the Company acquired through its subsidiary Emtec Global Services LLC Emtec Global Services all of the

outstanding stock of Luceo Inc Luceo headquartered in Naperville IL During 2009 we rebranded Luceo into the Emtec

Enterprise Resource Planning ERP and Application Development Practice This practice offers broad range of

consulting/contracting services to clients throughout the United States including IT project management services packaged software

implementation web technologies/client server application development and support

On August 13 2008 the Company acquired through its subsidiary Emtec Global Services all of the outstanding stock of eBusiness

Application Solutions Inc eBAS and Aveeva Inc Aveeva headquartered in Fremont CA and their Indian subsidiary Aviance

Software india Private Limited Aviance headquartered in Bangalore India During 2009 eBAS and Aveeva were rebranded in

2009 into the Emtec Business Analysis and Quality Assurance Practice This practice offers broad range of business and software

consulting services including process reengineering business analysis quality assurance testing and training Many of our

consultants have applied their skills in this practice in technologies such as ERP customer relationship management Oracle

Applications business intelligence and Javabased solutions throughout the United States In 2010 we rebranded Aviance into Emtec

Software India

On February 12 2009 the Company acquired through its subsidiary Emtec Infrastructure Services Corporation EIS-US all of the

outstanding stock of KOAN-IT Corp headquartered in Ottawa Canada KOAN-IT and KOAN-IT US Corp KOAN-IT US
KOAN-IT is consulting firm specializing in business service management methodologies for its clients in Canada and the United

States As of March 2009 KOAN-IT Corp and 7119747 Canada Inc subsidiary of EIS-US were amalgamated to form Emtec

Infrastructure Services Canada Corporation ElS-Canada which is referred to in this report as KOAN-IT

On May 12 2009 the Company acquired through its subsidiary KOAN-IT US certain assets of Enterprise Management Solutions

Inc EMS company under Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection in the Middle District of Florida Prior to the acquisition EMS was

consulting firm headquartered in Clearwater Florida specializing in business service management methodologies for its clients

throughout the United States

On April 2010 Emtec India acquired certain assets of SARK Infotech Private Limited SARK based in Mumbai India SARK

is software consulting firm

On June 2010 the Company acquired through its subsidiary Emtec Federal Inc all of the outstanding stock of Secure Data Inc

SDI headquartered in OFallon Illinois SDI is an application services consulting firm specializing in developing financial and

custom web business applications SDIs focus has been on agencies within the federal govermnent primarily the Department of

Defense and select commercial clients



indushy Background

We compete in the technology services market We provide our clients with broad
array of technology services including IT

infrastructure and process consulting development implementation and maintenance and support of custom and packaged business

applications planning managing maintaining and supporting IT infrastructure aligning their IT infrastructure with the needs of their

businesses and operations and advice design and selection of their business process technology needs We also provide our clients

with IT staff augmentation needs in select set of business application skills We can provide full lifecycle services as well as point

solutions for our clients depending on their needs

During the economic downturn in 2009 and 2010 the overall global market for technology services faced significant growth

challenges The market for distributors of technology products has been consolidating and manufacturers have intensified direct

selling efforts While this product market has matured the market for IT services has expanded from proliferation of technology

hardware software and networking Many organizations are increasingly dependent on the use of IT as competitive tool in todays
business environment The need to distribute and access information on real-time basis throughout an organization and between

organizations has led to the rapid growth in network computing infrastructures that connect numerous and geographically dispersed

end users through local and wide area networks This growth has been driven by the emergence of industry standard hardware
software and communications tools as well as the significant improvement in the performance capacity and utility of such network-

based equipment and applications

The decision-making process that confronts companies when planning selecting and implementing their IT needs continues to grow
more complex Organizations are continually faced with new business challenges which are not only driven by the markets they

operate in but by the rapid change of technology itself Many organizations today face intense competitive pressure and rapidly

changing market dynamics driven by such factors as changes in government regulations globalization and technology innovation In

response to these challenges many organizations are focused on improving productivity increasing service levels lowering costs and

expediting delivery times In order to achieve these goals organizations are focusing on improving applications and infrastructure to

facilitate faster more responsive lower-cost business operations The development integration and on-going maintenance of

improved operations can present major challenges and require highly skilled professionals trained in diverse technologies and many
companies are now outsourcing these function to independent providers of IT services Additionally organizations also require

additional technical resources to maintain enhance and re-engineer their core legacy IT systems to address application maintenance

projects

Increasingly many IT departments have shifted all or portion of their IT development integration and maintenance requirements to

outside service providers operating with on-site and/or offshore IT resources Global demand for high quality lower cost IT services

from outside providers has created significant opportunity for IT service providers that can successfully leverage the benefits of and

address the challenges in using offshore talent The delivery of IT services has shifted to global sourcing model where companies
can choose from wide array of technology partners and effectively manage their technology costs through the use of round the clock

support and best delivery

We serve clients in various vertical markets including governments at the federal both U.S and foreign governments state and local

level the K- 12 education market and various commercial businesses including healthcare and life sciences financial services retail

and telecommunications industries

Currently our largest source of revenue is the U.S federal government which is one of the largest purchasers of IT products and

services in the world and one of the largest users of outside contractors The use of outside contractors is driven primarily by an effort

to address specific skills needed by the federal government Engagements support mission-specific goals rather than routine and

deferrable office automation efforts The U.S federal government tends to use procurement vehicles to purchase its IT needs which
fosters partnering relationships that the federal government encourages in order to promote small businesses with opportunities to

serve the government while at the same time not forgoing shifting risk and management of large projects to larger companies

We also service the K-12 education market which is becoming high-volume adopter of technology School districts have been

typically slow to adapt to the needs of their student base and often have infrastructure that cannot currently support broader use of

technology by students We believe that the arrival of broad-band wireless delivery will eventually overcome some of these

infrastructure challenges and as delivery of technology and systems becomes more widespread and available the education market
will be able to adapt more quickly to provide students instructors and administrators with technology We also believe that the

delivery of content through technology will eventually enable schools to reduce other expenses such as textbooks These shifts should

enable technology to capture larger share of the budget of school system We have focused our education strategy on larger

suburban school districts with growing populations that have greater ability to fund their technology needs In particular we work
with school systems that have emphasized technology as an important part of their future curriculum As the technology expertise of

students becomes more prolific we expect the demand for services in this market to increase

Our Strategy

Our business objective is to maximize value for all our stakeholders including our associates our clients and our stockholders We
strive to be considered by our clients as one of their most trusted advisors and be recognized as the premier IT services company by
our partners We offer high-end practices as wedge to penetrate and deliver broad array of services to our clients Our wedges on



our application services business include IT strategy planning IT security consulting functional expertise such as federal agency

finance and accounting and our Information Management practice Our Infrastructure Services led by our Information Technology

Service Management ITSM practice views itself as partner to our clients ClO assisting them in enhancing their value to their

companies as well as helping them reduce their overall infrastructure costs through innovative solutions We intend to shift the

services we deliver to managed infrastructure services through our broader infrastructure offerings over time We will continue to

enhance our practice areas in both our infrastructure and applications services adding practices through organic growth development

of our existing consultants and hiring We expect our applications services business to become larger percentage
of our service

offering in the future and for Emtec eventually to be go-to source of application development maintenance and managed

services We believe that by working with single-source provider organizations will be able to adapt more quickly to technological

changes and reduce their overall IT costs

To this end we are pursuing the following strategies

Organic Growth through Verticalized Professionalized Sales Force

We have hired professional sales executives and experienced sales professionals who have significant experience selling IT

solutions and managed services into vertical practices We have trained these professionals in differentiating the Company

by offering unique set of solutions that provide value proposition for our clients We focus our sales professionals on

expanding our services within our existing client base many of whom are Fortune 100 companies or government agencies

of similar size Our sales force is enhanced by solution specialists who demonstrate agility in adjusting to the needs of our

clients

Pursuing Strategic Acquisitions

We are seeking to expand our service offerings We plan to enhance our technical expertise and our delivery capabilities and

to nurture and expand client relationships by means of acquisitions of companies whose businesses complement our

businesses and in particular expand into the area of business application services We intend to focus on companies with

management teams who are willing to commit to long-term participation in our organization and who share our vision of

continued growth

Capitalizing on Existing Relationships

We believe that our history of satisfiing the IT product requirements of our larger clients is facilitating the marketing of our

broad range of services to this important segment of our clientele The addition of our acquisition partners has expanded our

service offerings in areas of custom application development ERP and programming technologies and business service

management along with enriching our client base in variety of industry verticals including government retail

telecommunications financial services pharmaceutical insurance and manufacturing

Our Business

Strateic IT Consultin

We provide consulting around managing technology and business transformation information management strategies security and

compliance and risk management services We help clients to address business and technology issues in the areas of information

technology optimization and value extraction integrated business and technology architecture process and planning and

transformational program management We provide solutions for business and technology problems such as information

management transformational technology platforms supply chain processes and data analytics

Business Application Services

We work with our clients to analyze and redesign their business processes identify new process requirements select business

applications that are engineered to best fit their processes implement support and maintain their business applications We deliver

these services through project consulting assignments and staff augmentations Currently we have associates skilled in process

redesign and analysis custom application development independent validation and verification i.e quality assurance and testing

ERP and CRM solutions and Information Management i.e Business Intelligence Analytics and Data Warehousing and web-based

business applications

Infrastructure ConsultinR Services

Our infrastructure consulting services are designed to align the needs of our clients CIOs and IT organizations with the needs of their

businesses We offer these services in the following areas

IT Business Alignment and Planning Services These services help clients see the value that IT provides to the

organization creating cost savings in IT through effective management of projects and focus on IT service management



IT Operations and Support Services Our services are designed to provide clients with tools and methods to improve
internal IT service delivery while becoming effective and efficient on daily basis IT departments can then reduce costs

while becoming more proactive in providing internal service and support

IT Practices Governance Using industry standards based on an Information Technology Infrastructure Library

ITIL we assist clients to measure and assess their IT performance against their peer groups Our services also include

strategies for implementation improvement and continued governance to maintain an IT department that follows best

practices

Data Storage Solutions We offer storage needs assessments solution recommendations with hardware software and

implementation project requirements implementation and integration services post-sales training maintenance and support

services

Infrastructure Manaffed Services

Our managed infrastructure services provide ongoing monitoring and support of our clients networks through the utilization of help

desk and network monitoring services as well as through our own on-site engineering resources This allows our clients to focus the

majority of their efforts on their businesses rather than managing their IT infrastructures We offer these services in following areas

Lifecycle Management Services Our lifecycle management services are designed to provide clients with continuous

availability of service and support throughout the lifecycle of their IT investments including the full spectrum of IT product

acquisition and support services needed to support server environments Our services include

evaluation and prioritization of business objectives to determine the best course of action for our clients

consultation with clients to identify the right IT products and services for their needs

leveraging our vendor relationships to quickly source the right combination of products

providing logistical support needed to deploy major technology roll out and

providing continuous support to enable client to improve end-user satisfaction minimize downtime and lower the total

cost of ownership

Support Services Contracts We offer both manufacturer and our own support service contracts that provide our clients

with extended technical support on-site hardware service and access to new software releases at fixed price

Training We offer dynamic IT training program that keeps abreast of industry trends and market requirements Areas of

study include ITIL software quality assurance software development life cycle IT project management unified modeling

language software test automation IT business analysis data warehousing and business intelligence ERP and web

application development

Enterprise Computing Solutions We offer full spectrum of IT product acquisition and support services needed to

support client/server environments including product sourcing network design and implementation technical support
server consolidation virtualization and clustering and load balancing for high availability

Data Communications Solutions We offer Local Area Network Wide Area Network and data wireless connectivity

voice over IP and cabling solutions that are designed to enhance communication capabilities while decreasing costs

Data Access Solutions We enable on-demand access to information from anywhere over any network our mobility

messaging and management solutions provide secure data access which we believe will increase business productivity and

reduce IT costs for our clients

Procurement services

Procurement services include planning designing procuring deploying installing the software on and maintaining the hardware and

networks of our clients Typically our clients go through 3-5 year cycles on their equipment and they stagger the deployments

throughout their organization This leads to more predictable and steady procurement cycle for our practice area We are product

agnostic and for an organization of our scale we feel this differentiates us from many of our competitors because we can offer them

the best solution for their IT spend without creating conflicts We offer products from broad array of technology from both

hardware manufacturers and software providers Equipment we deploy and maintain includes workstations servers networking and

communications equipment enterprise computing products and application software We minimize inventory risk by ordering

products primarily on an as-needed basis We utilize electronic ordering and pricing systems that provide real-time status checks on

the aggregators inventories and maintain electronic data interchange links to other suppliers Our sales team is thereby able to

schedule shipments more accurately and to provide electronically-generated client price lists



K-12 Specialized Services for Student and Faculty Needs

We integrate top-quality curriculum software and computer products into the classroom We have significant experience in building

local area networks that link campuses together We also provide district-wide support and sustain internet access to educational

resources worldwide We tailor our array of services to make the best use of limited funds

Marketing

Our marketing efforts are focused on

Brand Building broadening our public image as an IT services provider

Lead Generation and focused marketing campaigns promoting our offerings to current clients prospects partners and

investors increasing overall inquiries and sales from all sources

Increasing Awareness maintaining constant flow of marketing communications to increase and maintain our market

presence

Increasing traffic to our web site

Providing sales tools and research to support our sales team

Our marketing group is charged with sales lead generation Through diverse efforts that include print and electronic advertising

seminars and webinars tradeshows direct mail public relations telemarketing bi-monthly newsletter and through our website we

create multiple and frequent contacts with existing and prospective clients The primary goal is to increase the number of face to face

meeting opportunities between our account team and prospective clients and to drive additional opportunities through our sales

pipeline During the upcoming fiscal year we will continue to consolidate our offerings under the Emtec brand name and promote our

full line of capabilities to current and prospective clients

Customers

Our clients are primarily large business organizations departments of the United States and Canadas federal state and local

governments local school districts and other large and mid-sized companies throughout the United States and Canada The majority of

our sales are drawn from various civilian and military U.S governmental departments and agencies We service our client base from

leased facilities in California Georgia Florida Illinois New Jersey Pennsylvania and Virginia in the United States Bangalore and

Mumbai in India and Ottawa and other offices in Canada

Our governmental agency clients include the Department of Defense Department of Justice Department of Homeland Security

Department of Health and Human Services Department of Commerce and the General Service Administration GSA Our state

and local government clients include various state agencies and other local government units Educational institution clients primarily

include K-l2 school districts

The government utilizes variety of contracting methods when purchasing from us including negotiated bids pre-negotiated blanket

purchase agreement contracts and open-market procurements We participate in formal government bids for all contract types and

also process orders received on existing contracts on an ongoing basis

Substantially all of these bids are awarded on best value to the government basis which depending on the bid can be

combination of price technical expertise past performance on other government and commercial contracts and other factors We

seek to use contacts purchasing power distribution strength value-added services and procurement expertise to compete successfully

on these bids These major procurements can generate millions of dollars in annual revenue span multiple years and provide

government personnel with an expedited method of purchasing from us

We hold GSA contract for the sale of IT products and services that runs through September 2015 Schedule 70 contracts are multi-

award schedule contracts managed by the GSA IT Acquisition Center Additionally we hold two Indefinite Delivery Indefinite

Quantity IDIQ contracts that are valid for all federal government agencies An Army Desktop and Mobile Computing

ADMC-2 prime contract issued to us by the Army Small Computer Program provides all military departments and other

authorized government agencies the ability to purchase desktops laptops thin clients ruggedized computers peripheral devices and

related accessories The ADMC-2 contract is valid thru April 2016 National Aeronautics and Space Administration Solutions for

Enterprise-Wide Procurement IV SEWP IV prime contract issued to us by NASA provides all governmental agencies with the

means to purchase wide variety of IT products and related integration and installation services Specifically for the SEWP

contract we are considered large business and the SEWP IV contract is valid through April 2014 We also hold contract to

provide the National Institute of Health with IT products and services that runs through November 2012



It is expected that federal government business revenues will continue to represent large portion of our total revenues and that the

consulting services to the federal government will become an increasingly important part of our business as we continue to strive to

penetrate wider and deeper into various civilian and military agencies

Our revenues by client type consist of following in thousands

For the Years Ended

August 31 2010 August 31 2009

Departments of the U.S Government 104598 46.6% 85044 38.0%

Canadian Government Agencies 2509 1.0% 771 0.3%

State and Local Governments 4105 1.8% 7333 3.3%

Commercial Companies 51491 23.0% 65595 29.3%

Education and other 61899 27.6% 65100 29.1%

Total Revenues 224602 100.0% 223843 100.0%

Government Contracts Potentially Subject to Termination

Our contracts with the U.S federal state and local government clients are generally subject to termination in whole or part at the

convenience of the government parties or if funding becomes unavailable

Competition

The IT services industry is highly competitive Our competitors include other IT service providers systems integrators and value

added resellers

Many of our current and potential competitors have longer operating histories and substantially greater financial sales marketing
technical and other resources than we do As result our competitors may be able to adapt more quickly to changes in client needs or

to devote greater resources than we can to the sales of IT products and the provision of IT services

We are also in direct competition with various IT consulting companies These competitors run the gamut from niche consulting

companies to the established consulting arms of international accounting and auditing firms Several of these competitors offer most

of the same basic products as we do We also encounter competition from microcomputer manufacturers that sell their products

through direct sales forces and from manufacturers and distributors that emphasize mail order and telemarketing sales Depending on
the client the principal areas of competition may include technological expertise quality of consultants depth and breadth of offering

consultant service levels pre-sale and post-sale technical support and service breadth of product line and price

Employees

As of November 11 2010 we employed 649 individuals including 450 IT services consulting staff and support personnel 98 sales

marketing and related support personnel 66 operations and administrative personnel and 35 employees in accounting finance and

human resources We believe that our ability to recruit and retain highly skilled technical and other management personnel will be

critical to our ability to execute our business model and growth strategy We believe that our relations with our employees are good

Available Information

The public may read and copy any materials filed by us with the SEC at the SECs public reference room located at 100 Street N.E
Washington D.C 20549 The public may obtain information about the operation of the SECs public reference rooms by calling the

SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 The SEC also maintains website at http//www.sec.gov that contains reports proxy and information

statements and other information about issuers such as us that file electronically with the SEC

In addition we make available free of charge on our website at www.emtecinc.com our annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly

reports on Form lO-Q current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or

15d under the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practical after we electronically file such material with or furnish it to the

SEC Information on our website is not incorporated by reference into this report



Item 1A Risk Factors

The current economic recession and declining general economic business or industry conditions may continue to adversely affrct

the business of the Company as well as our ability to forecast financial results

The domestic and international economies continue to feel the effects of the significant recession The effects of the recession have

been magnified by the tightening of the availability and cost of credit inflation volatile energy costs geopolitical issues declining

U.S real estate market decreased business and consumer confidence and increased unemployment These and other macro-economic

conditions have contributed to increased volatility and diminished expectations for the global economy and expectations of future

global economic growth If the economic climate in the U.S and abroad does not improve or continues to deteriorate our customers

or potential customers could reduce or delay their purchases of our offerings which would adversely impact our revenues and our

ability to sell our offerings collect customer receivables and ultimately our profitability Additionally future economic conditions

currently have an increased degree of inherent uncertainty As result it is more difficult to estimate the level of growth or

contraction for the economy as whole as well as for the various sectors of the economy such as the IT market Because all

components of our budgeting and forecasting are dependent upon estimates of growth or contraction in the IT market and demand for

our offerings the prevailing economic uncertainties render accurate estimates of future income and expenditures very difficult to

make We cannot predict the effect or duration of this economic slowdown or the timing or strength of subsequent economic

recovery worldwide or in the IT industry Further adverse changes may occur as result of soft global domestic or regional economic

conditions wavering consumer confidence unemployment declines in stock markets contraction of credit availability or other factors

affecting economic conditions generally These changes may negatively affect the sales of our offerings increase exposure to losses

from bad debts increase the cost and decrease the availability of financing or increase the risk of loss on investments

Our financial results are impacted by the level of business activity of our clients in particular our commercial clients Continued

economic downturns may cause reductions in technology and discretionary spending by our clients which may result in reductions in

the growth of new business as well as reductions in existing business If our commercial clients enter bankruptcy or liquidate their

operations our revenue could be adversely affected There can be no assurance that weakening economic conditions throughout the

world will not adversely impact our results of operations and/or financial position

Our revenues are derived from afew major dents the loss of any of which could cause our results of operations to be adversely

affrcted

large portion of our revenues are drawn from various civilian and military U.S governmental departments and agencies These

clients include the Department of Defense Department of Justice Department of Homeland Security Department of Health and

Human Services Department of Agriculture Department of Commerce and the GSA During the last two fiscal years ended on

August 31 2010 and 2009 U.S governmental department and agency related sales accounted for approximately 46.6% and 38.0% of

our total revenues respectively

Either of the following additional risk factors could have material negative impact on our business

seasonality of federal government related business makes future financial results less predictable and

due to our dependence on governments demand for IT products material decline in overall sales to the government as

whole or to certain key agency thereof could have material adverse effect on our results of operations

Additionally sales to one of the school districts in Georgia accounted for approximately $41.2 million or 18.4% and $44.3 million or

19.8% of the Companys total revenues for years ended August 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

We cannot assure you that we can successfully increase the portion of our revenues derivedfrom IT services and consulting If we

are unsuccessful our future results may be adversely afftcted

Our transition from an emphasis on IT procurement services to an emphasis on providing IT services and consulting has placed

significant demands on our managerial administrative and operational resources Our ability to manage this transition effectively is

dependent upon our ability to develop and improve operational financial and other internal systems as well as our business

development capabilities and to attract train retain motivate and manage our employees If we are unable to do so our ability to

effectively deliver and support our services may be adversely affected Further our transitional efforts to access higher-margin

services and consulting revenues may result in reduced IT procurement
services revenue If we successfully expand our IT services

offerings periods of variability in utilization may continue to occur In addition we are likely to incur greater technical training costs

during such periods Historically our IT procurement services accounted for approximately 74.0% and 75.1% of our total revenues

for the years ended August 31 2010 and 2009 respectively In contrast our IT services and consulting accounted for approximately

26.0% and 24.9% of our total revenues for the years ended August 31 2010 and 2009 respectively



Our new services and consulting offerings have not achieved widespread client acceptance If they do not achieve market

acceptance our profit potential may be adversely afftcted

We have limited experience in developing marketing or providing these services We cannot assure you that we will be able to

successfully market such services to either new or existing clients that our services will achieve market acceptance or that we will be

able to effectively hire integrate and manage additiOnal technical personnel to enable us to perform these services to our clients

expectations

Our business will suffer wefail to develop new services and enhance our existing services in order to keep pace with the rapidly

evolving technological environmeni

The IT services and consulting market is characterized by rapid technological change evolving industry standards changing client

preferences and new product and service introductions Our future success will depend on our ability to develop solutions that keep

pace with changes in the IT services and consulting market We cannot assure you that we will be successful in developing new
services addressing evolving technologies on timely or cost-effective basis or if these services are developed that we will be

successful in the marketplace In addition we cannot assure you that products services or technologies developed by others will not

render our services non-competitive or obsolete Our failure to address these developments could have material adverse effect on our

business results of operations and financial condition

We may not be able to compete effrctively in the highly competitiveIT services and consulting industry

The IT services and consulting business is highly competitive Our competitors include established computer product manufacturers
some of which supply products to us distributors computer resellers systems integrators and other IT service providers Many

computer product manufacturers also sell to clients through their direct sales organizations and certain of them have announced their

intentions to ethance such direct sales efforts Many of our current and potential competitors have longer operating histories and

financial sales marketing technical and other resources substantially greater than ours As result our competitors may be able to

adapt more quickly to changes in client needs or to devote greater resources than we can to the sales of IT products and the provision

of IT services and we may not have the resources necessary to compete effectively

Our inability to maintain high personnel-utilization rates may adversely impact our profit potentiality

The most significant cost relating to the services component of our business is personnel expense which consists of salaries benefits

and payroll related expenses Thus the financial performance of our service business is based primarily upon billing margins billable

hourly rates less the costs to us of service personnel on an hourly basis and utilization rates billable hours divided by paid

hours The future success of the services component of our business will depend in large part upon our ability to maintain high
utilization rates at profitable billing margins The competition for quality technical personnel has continued to intensii resulting in

increased personnel costs This intense competition has caused our billing margins to be lower than they might otherwise have

been Our utilization rates for service personnel likely will also be adversely affected during periods of rapid and concentrated hiring

Competition for highly skilled technical personnel is intense and the success of our business depends on our ability to attract and
retain highly skilled professionals

Our future success will depend to significant extent on our ability to attract train and retain highly skilled IT development

professionals In particular we need to attract train and retain project managers IT engineers and other senior technical personnel
We believe there is shortage of and significant competition for IT development professionals in the United States with the advanced

technological skills necessary to perform the services we offer We have subcontracted to limited extent in the past and may do so

in the future with other service providers in order to meet our obligations to our clients Our ability to maintain and renew existing

engagements and obtain new business will depend in large part on our ability to attract train and retain technical personnel with the

skills that keep pace with continuing changes in IT evolving industry standards and changing client preferences Further we must

train and manage our growing work force requiring an increase in the level of responsibility for both existing and new management

personnel We cannot assure you that the management skills and systems currently in place will be adequate or that we will be able to

train and assimilate new employees successfully Our failure to attract train and retain current or future employees could have

material adverse effect on our business results of operations and financial condition

Our growth may be hindered by United States Citizenship and Immigration Services restrictions

Our continued success will depend to large extent on our ability to remain in the forefront of developments in the field of IT In

order for us to remain competitive in the current market environment it is critical for us to hire and maintain the services of highly

skilled and competitive employees who have the technical and practical expertise to meet the high-end technological needs of our
clients number of our IT professionals are from developing countries especially India The ability of Indian nationals to work in

the United States depends on obtaining the necessary visas and work permits

The H-lB visa classification enables U.S employers to employ foreign workers in specialty occupations that require theoretical or

technical expertise in specialized field such as Systems Analysis and Systems Engineering and bachelors degree or its

equivalent The H-lB visa usually permits an individual to work and live in the United States for period of up to six years Under



certain circumstances H-i visa extensions after the six-year period may be available There is limit on the number of new H-lB

petitions that United States Citizenship and Immigration Services or USCIS one of the successor agencies to the Immigration and

Naturalization Service may approve in any federal fiscal year In years in which this limit is reached we may be unable to obtain H-

lB visas necessary to bring foreign employees to the United States Furthermore the costs associated with obtaining H-lB visas is

continuing to increase

The numerical limitation on H-lB petitions for Fiscal Year 2011 is 65000 however that number is reduced to 58200 by reserved

allocations for certain countries including Singapore and Chile There is an additional 20000 cap-exempt H-lBs available for

individuals who have U.S masters or higher degree USCIS began accepting H-lB petitions subject to the Fiscal Year 2011 FY

2011 cap on April 2010 Despite the current economic environment as of November 2010 approximately 46800 H-lB cap-

subject petitions had been filed for the federal fiscal year
2011 cap USCIS has received 17200 H-lB petitions under the U.S

Masters Cap out of the exemption of 20000 available for beneficiaries with U.S masters or higher degrees for the fiscal year 2011

cap In the past years
the H-lB cap was reached prior to the beginning of the fiscal year for which the H-lB visas were to become

available

Moreover there are strict labor regulations associated with the H-lB visa classification Larger users of the H-lB visa program are

often subject to investigations by the Wage and Hour Division of the United States Department of Labor finding by the United

States Department of Labor of willful or substantial failure by employers to comply with existing Department of Labor regulations on

the H-lB classification may result in back-pay liability substantial fines andlor ban on future use of the H-lB program and other

immigration benefits We are currently subject to such an investigation

We also process immigrant visas for lawful permanent residence for employees to fill positions for which there are no able willing

and qualified U.S workers available to fill the positions Compliance with the existing U.S immigration and labor laws or changes in

those laws making it more difficult to hire foreign nationals or limiting our ability to successfully obtain permanent residence for our

foreign employees in the United States could require us to incur additional unexpected labor costs and expenses or could restrain our

ability to retain the skilled professionals we need for our operations in the United States Any of these.restrictions or limitations on our

hiring practices could have material adverse effect on our business results of operations and financial condition

Our revenues and expenses are unpredictable decrease in revenues or increase in expenses could materially adversely affect our

operating results

Our operating results have been and will continue to be impacted by changes in technical personnel billing and utilization

rates Moreover we expect that downward pricing pressure will persist due to the continued commoditization of computer

products Further there are numerous other factors which are not within our control that can contribute to fluctuations in our

operating results including the following

patterns of capital spending by clients

the timing size and mix of product and service orders and deliveries

the timing and size of new projects including projects for new clients and

changes in trends affecting outsourcing of IT services

We also believe that to limited degree our business is seasonal with greater proportion of our product sales occurring in the first

quarter of our fiscal year due to ihe capital budgeting and spending patterns of some of our larger clients Operating results have been

and may in the future also be affected by the cost timing and other effects of acquisitions including the mix of product and service

revenues of acquired companies

Failure to comply with the financial covenants under our credit facility would allow our lender to call for repayment of our

outstanding borrowings

Our credit facility contains certain financial covenants As of August 31 2010 the Company was in compliance with all of its

financial covenants and the Company had $16.0 million outstanding under the revolving portion of the credit facility and balances of

$3.4 million included in the Companys accounts payable plus $723000 in open approvals under the floor plan portion of the credit

facility As of August 31 2010 net availability was $6.8 million under the revolving portion of the credit facility and additionally

$5.0 million was available under the floor plan portion of the credit facility There can be no assurance that we will be in compliance

with all of our financial covenants in the future and that the lender will not immediately call for repayment of the outstanding

borrowings under the credit facility in the event we are not in compliance with any of the financial covenants

Our inability to renew our existing credit facility before it terminates could have material adverse effrct on our business

operating results and financial condition

Our existing credit facility is scheduled to terminate on December 2010 The Company is currently in the process of negotiating

two year renewal of its credit facility with the lender and anticipates the renewal will be completed prior to December 2010 which



is the expiration date of the existing credit facility There can be no assurance that we will be successful in our effort to negotiate

renewal of the existing facility As of August 31 2010 the Company had $16.0 million outstanding under the revolving portion of the

credit facility and balances of $3.4 million included in the Companys accounts payable plus $723000 in open approvals under the

floor plan portion of the credit facility If the credit facility is not renewed the amount due under the existing facility on December
2010 significantly exceeds the Companys available cash as of August31 2010

In the event that we are obligated to pay such debt in full we may not be able to meet this demand If we do not have sufficient funds

and are otherwise unable to negotiate renewals of our credit facility or arrange new financing we may have to sell significant assets

Any such sale could have material adverse effect on our business and financial results Additionally if we are unable to pay back the

amount due we will be in default under our credit facility and the lender may take remedial action including forcing the Company
into bankruptcy

Our lenders may have suffrred losses related to the weakening economy and may not be able to fund our borrowings

Our lenders including the lender for our credit facility could have suffered losses related to their lending and other financial

relationships especially because of the general weakening of the national economy and increased financial instability of many
borrowers As result lenders may become insolvent or tighten their lending standards which could make it more difficult for us to

borrow under our credit facility or to obtain other financing on favorable terms or at all Our financial condition and results of

operations would be adversely affected if we were unable to draw funds under our credit facility because of lender default or to

obtain other cost-effective financing

Reduction in or elimination of our credit facilities with our primaly trade vendors could have material adverse effect on our

business and operations

As of August 31 2010 our open terms credit lines with our primary trade vendors including aggregators and manufacturers were

$41.5 million Under these credit lines we are typically obligated to pay each invoice within 30-45 days from the date of such invoice

These credit lines could be reduced or eliminated without notice and this action could have material adverse affect on our

business result of operations and financial condition

Adverse changes in U.S federal government fiscal spending could have negative effect on our sales gross margin and cash

flow

Changes in U.S federal government spending policies or budget priorities could directly affect our financial performance Among the

factors that could materially harm our business are

significant decline in spending by the U.S federal government in general or by specific departments or agencies in

particular which may occur if lower tax revenues are received by the government as result of any economic slow-down

changes in the structure composition and/or buying patterns of the U.S federal government

the adoption of new laws or regulations changing procurement practices or

delays in the payment of our invoices by government payment offices

These or other factors could cause U.S federal government agencies and departments to reduce their purchases under contracts to

exercise their right to terminate contracts or not to exercise options to renew contracts any of which would cause us to lose future

revenue

The demand for our products and services in our state local and education verticals depends primarily on state and local budgets
Our business financial condition and results of operations may be harmed state and local budgets continue to be constrained

Education state and local verticals sales levels are subject to fluctuations driven in part by state budgetary status and changes in state

and local govermnent funding and spending patterns We believe there has been reduction in spending by schools due to the general

economic conditions in the United States and fiscal constraints on state and local government budgets continuation of global capital

and credit market instability sluggish economic recovery or return to period of economic contraction could result in reductions

or further reductions as the case may be in spending by school districts and other customers to which we sell products and services

further reduction in spending by our customers could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of

operations

Any issue that compromises our relationship with agencies of the U.S Federal Government would cause serious harm to our

business

Our sales are highly dependent on the governments demand for IT products We believe that U.S federal government contracts will

continue to be source of the majority of our sales for the foreseeable future For this reason any issue that compromises our

relationship with agencies of the U.S federal government would cause serious harm to our business material decline in overall
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sales to the U.S federal government as whole or to certain key agencies thereof could have materially adverse effect on our

results of operations Among the key factors in maintaining our relationships with U.S federal government agencies are

our performance on individual contracts and delivery orders

the strength of our professional reputation

the relationships of our key executives with client personnel

our compliance with complex procurement laws and regulations related to the formation administration and performance of

U.S federal government contracts and

the ability of the U.S federal government at their convenience to unilaterally terminate our contracts in whole or part

To the extent that our performance does not meet client expectations or our reputation or relationships deteriorate this would cause

negative effect on our sales profitability and cash flow Noncompliance with government procurement regulations or contract

provisions could result in substantial monetary fines or damages suspension or debarment from doing business with the U.S federal

government and civil or criminal liability

We are subject to regular review and audit by our government clients government auditors and others and these reviews can lead

to the non-renewal or termination of existing contracts legal actions fines and liabilities and other remedies against us

From time to time we are subject to review and audit by governmental agencies relating to our governmental business as well as our

taxes Given the demands of working for governmental agencies we expect that from time to time we will have disagreements or

experience performance issues with the various government clients for which we work If performance or other issues arise as result

of any investigative process
the government retains the right to pursue remedies which could include fines or the threatened

termination termination or non-renewal under any affected contract If any fines are levied or contract so terminated or not renewed

our ability to secure future contracts could be adversely affected Further the negative publicity that could arise from disagreements

with the government could have an adverse effect on our reputation in the industry reduce our ability to compete for new contracts

and may also have material adverse effect on our business financial condition results of operations and cash flow

Write-offs of goodwill and other intangible assets could adversely affect our future results of operations and financial position

Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized but instead are subject to annual impairment tests As

of August 31 2010 and 2009 we had goodwill of approximately $14.0 million and $11.4 million respectively We performed

impairment tests on goodwill as of June 2010 and 2009 and no impairment losses were recorded We test for impairment at least

annually Such tests may result in determination that these assets have been impaired If at any time we determine that an

impairment has occurred we will be required to reflect the impaired value as part of operating income resulting in reduction in

earnings in the period such impairment is identified and corresponding reduction in our net asset value material reduction in

earnings resulting from such charge could cause us to fail to be profitable or increase the amount of its net loss in the period in which

the charge is taken or otherwise fail to meet the expectations of investors and securities analysts which could cause the price of our

stock to decline

Our quarterly sales and operating results are volatile which makes our future financial results difficult to forecast

Our sales operating results and earnings per share have been and are expected to continue to be subject to significant fluctuations

from quarter to quarter due to number of factors including

the seasonality of our business due to the U.S federal govermnents buying and funding patterns

fluctuations in our gross margins due to variations in the mix of products and services sold

the number size and scope of orders from our clients

availability of price protection purchase discounts and rebate programs
from vendors

contractual terms and degree of completion of projects

currency fluctuations and

changes in our sales cycles as we move towards solution selling

Our recent level of gross margins may not be sustainable In addition changes in services gross margin may result from various

factors such as changes in the mix between technical support services and advanced services as well as the timing of service contract
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initiations renewals and utilization of service personnel As consequence sales volumes and operating results for future periods are

difficult to predict and therefore prior results are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected in future periods

We must maintain our status as an authorized reseller/service provider of IT products The loss of any one such authorization

could have material adverse effect on our business and operations

We are materially dependent on our continued status as an approved reseller of IT products and our continued authorization as an IT

service provider Without such authorizations we would be unable to provide the range of products and services we currently offer

including warranty services and manufacturers support services contracts Our resale agreements with manufacturers generally are

terminable by manufacturers upon 30 days prior written notice The loss of one or more of such authorizations could have material

adverse effect on our business and results of operations

We have no long-term sales commitments from any of our suppliers loss of any of our principal suppliers would material

adversely affrct our IT procurement business

Our IT procurement business depends on large part upon our access to aggregators and manufacturers to supply us with products at

competitive prices and on reasonable terms for resale by us to our clients Certain agreements may be terminated by such companies

upon 30 days prior written notice We cannot assure you that we will be able to continue to obtain products from the aggregators and

manufacturers at prices or on terms acceptable to us if at all

Our client engagements entail significant risks and failure to meet clients expectations could materially adversely affect our

reputation and business

Many of our engagements involve projects that are critical to the operationsof our clients businesses and provide benefits that may be

difficult to quantify Our failure or inability to meet clients expectations in the performance of our services could result in

material adverse change to the clients operations and therefore could give rise to claims against us or damage our reputation

adversely affecting our business results of operations and financial condition

Our use of fixed-price contracts could adversely affect our operating results

From time to time we may enter into contracts that are performed on fixed-price basis Under fixed-price contract we agree on the

price that we will receive for the entire project based upon defined scope which includes specific assumptions and project criteria

If our estimates of our own costs to complete the project are below the actual costs that we may incur our margins will decrease and

we may incur loss The revenue cost and gross profit realized on fixed-price contract will often vary from the estimated amounts

because of unforeseen conditions or changes in job conditions and variations in labor and equipment productivity over the term of the

contract If we are unsuccessful in mitigating these risks we may realize gross profits that are different from those originally estimated

and incur reduced profitability or losses on projects Depending on the size of project these variations from estimated contract

performance could have significant effect on our operating results for any quarter or year

We may issue additional equity to management or in connection with future acquisition that may dilute our stockholders

ownership

We have in the past and in the future will continue to issue equity to management as part of our executive compensation program In

addition as part of our strategy we may acquire other businesses and may use our stock as portion of the purchase price for such

transactions Any future equity issuances will result in further dilution to holders of our common stock

Holders of our common stock may face lack of liquidity

Our common stock is currently traded on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board market Given the fact that our common stock is thinly

traded there can be no assurance that the desirable characteristics of an active trading market for such securities will ever develop or

be maintained Therefore each investors ability to control the timing of the liquidation of the investment in our common stock will

be restricted and an investor may be required to retain his investment in our common stock indefinitely

The market price of our common stock has been and is likely to continue to be volatile which may make it difficult for

stockholders to resell common stock when they want to and at prices theyfind attractive

Our share price has been volatile due in part to the general volatility of the securities market Factors other than our operating results

may affect our share price and may include the level of perceived growth of the industries in which we participate market

expectations of our performance success of the partners and the sale or purchase of large amounts of our common stock
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If we make future acquisitions of companies technology and other assets we may be exposed to numerous risks such as difficulty

integrating acquired companies technologies and assets or generating an acceptable return on our investment

We may pursue opportunities to acquire companies technologies and assets that would complement our current service offerings

expand the breadth of our markets enhance our technical capabilities or that may otherwise offer growth opportunities as we have

done in the past Acquisitions involve numerous risks including the following

difficulties in integrating the system with our current operations

diversion of managements attention away from normal daily operations of our business

difficulty in entering markets in which we have no or limited direct prior experience and where competitors in such markets

have stronger market positions

initial dependence on an unfamiliar system while training personnel in its use

insufficient revenues to offset increased expenses associated with acquisitions and

the potential loss of key employees of the acquired companies

Acquisitions may also cause us to

issue common stock or preferred stock or assume stock option plans that would dilute current stockholders percentage

ownership

use cash which may result in reduction of our liquidity

assume liabilities

record goodwill and other intangible assets that would be subject to impairment testing and potential periodic impairment

charges

incur amortization expenses related to certain intangible assets

incur large and immediate write-offs and

become subject to litigation

Mergers and acquisitions of companies in our industry and related industries are inherently risky and no assurance can be given that

our acquisition strategy will be successful that we will have the resources to pursue this strategy and that such acquisitions will not

materially adversely affect our business operating results or financial condition Failure to manage and successfully integrate

acquisitions could harm our business and operating results in material way Even when an acquired company has already developed

and marketed products or services there can be no assurance that product enhancements will be made in timely fashion or that all

pre-acquisition due diligence will have identified all possible issues that might arise with respect to such products or services

Restrictions in non-competition agreements with former shareholders of acquired companies may not be enforceable

We have entered into non-competition agreements with former shareholders of acquired companies We cannot be assured however

that the restrictions in these agreements prohibiting such former shareholders from engaging in activities that are competitive with the

businesses that we have acquired are enforceable

We could find it challenging to obtain financingforfuture acquisitions in todays environmenL

The current state of the global credit markets could hinder our ability to secure financing for future acquisitions andlor could make

obtaining the necessary financing cost prohibitive The tightening of credit markets could limit our ability to fully execute our growth

strategy and expand our business because there will be fewer acquisition opportunities available or only smaller acquisition

opportunities that can still be financed

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates could negatively impact our results of operations

We are exposed to gains and losses resulting from the effect that fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates have on the reported

results in our Consolidated Financial Statements due to the translation of operating results and financial position of our foreign

subsidiaries
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Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable

Item Properties

We lease space in fifteen locations Our corporate headquarters is currently located in Springfield New Jersey The following table

contains information about each of our leased facilities

Address Segment Used by Size in Square Feet Monthly Rent Expiration Date

100 Matsonford Road Suite 420 EIS/EGS 7342 14005 June 30 2017

Radnor Corporate Center

Radnor PA 19087

500 Satellite Blvd EIS 36284 20816 November 30 2014

Suwannee GA 30024

9450
Philips Highway Suite EIS 7563 4601 February 28 2014

Jacksonville FL 32256

40 Shuman Blvd EGS 2593 2701 May 31 2012

Suite 216

Naperville IL 60563

11 Diamond Road EIS 42480 17250 May 31 2014

Springfield NJ 07081

2355 Dulles Corner Blvd EIS 11012 21978 March 30 2016

Suite 600

HerndonVA 20171

44150 Grimmer Blvd EGS 20000 20000 August 31 2011

Fremont CA 94538

16 Executive Drive EIS 3788 7892 June 30 2011

Fairview Heights IL 62208

612 Pierce Boulevard EIS 4900 9762 December 31 2014

OFallon IL 62269

311 South Lincoln Avenue EIS 1200 1000 February 28 2013

OFallon IL 62269

30 1st Floor 9th Main EIS/EGS 2500 1064 September 17 2011

14th Cross 6th Sector

HSR Layout

Bangalore 560102

India

301 Acme Industrial Park EGS 3141 4669 February 28 2011

Western Express Highway

Goregaon East

Mumbai -400064

India

329MarchRoadSuite 108 EIS 4150 9154 April 30 2012

Ottawa ON K2K 2E1

Canada

1010 Sherbrooke West Suite 1800 EIS 180 2500 Monthly

Montreal QB H3A 2R7

Canada

4950 Yonge Street Suite 2200 EIS 300 1971 Monthly
Toronto ON M2N 6K1

Canada

We lease six guesthouses that are utilized by our consultants during training The aggregate monthly rent for these guesthouses is

approximately $9000 The leases for these guesthouses expire February 28 2011
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Item Legal Proceedings

In October 2010 the Company learned that it had been named as defendant in qui tam case alleging violations of the Trade

Agreements Act This case designated United States ex rel Folliard Synnex Corporation et al was filed under seal in the United

States District Court for the District of Columbia Qui tam lawsuits typically remain under seal hence usually unknown to the

defendant for some time while the government decides whether or not to intervene on behalf of private qui tam plaintiff known as

relator and take the lead in the litigation These lawsuits can involve significant monetary damages and penalties and award

bounties to private plaintiffs who successfully bring the suits The United States declined to intervene in the matter on May 27 2010

Nonetheless the Company can provide no assurance that the government will not intervene in this case in the future or in any other

qui tam suit against the Company in the future The Company expects to file motion to dismiss the lawsuit At this time the

Company is unable to predict the timing and outcome of this matter

The Company is occasionally involved in various lawsuits claims and administrative proceedings arising in the normal course of

business Except as set forth above the Company believes that any liability or loss associated with such matters individually or in the

aggregate will not have material adverse effect on the Companys financial condition or results of operations

Item Removed and Reserved
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock is quoted on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board market under the symbol ETEC The following table sets

forth the high and low closing prices of our common stock for the periods indicated

Three Months Ended High Low

August 31 2010 1.43 0.80

May3l20l0 1.65 1.10

Feburary2820l0 1.35 0.94

November 30 2009 0.99 0.70

August 31 2009 1.09 0.40

May3l2009 0.78 0.50

Feburary 28 2009 0.95 0.25

November 30 2008 1.01 0.36

The above quotations represent prices between dealers and do not include retail mark-ups markdowns or commissions They do not

necessarily represent actual transactions

As of November 2010 there were 484 record holders of our common stock although we believe that the number of beneficial

holders is approximately 850

We have not previously declared any dividends It is not likely that dividends on shares of our common stock will be declared in the

foreseeable future Under our current credit facility we may not declare any dividends without the consent of our lenders However
even if our lenders consented the determination and payment of dividends with respect to the shares in the future will be within the

discretion of the Board and will depend on our earnings capital requirements and operating and financial condition among other

factors

Information with respect to equity compensation plans of the Company appears in Item 12 of this report

On June 2010 Emtec Federal Inc Emtec Federal wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired all of the outstanding

stock of Secure Data pursuant to the Purchase Agreement The consideration for the acquisition included 175000 shares of

restricted common stock of the Company andlor ii the potential right to receive 100000 shares of restricted common stock of the

Registrant on the third anniversary of the closing if certain performance goals are met

On August 2010 the Company entered into letter agreement the Letter Agreement with DARR Westwood LLC the

Investor pursuant to which among other things the Investor agreed to certain transfer restrictions on shares of Common
Stock owned by the Investor which are described below and ii to transfer to the Company for cancellation the existing warrant

owned by the Investor to purchase 8% of the outstanding Common Stock on fully diluted basis and the Company issued to the

Investor warrant the Warrant to purchase up to an aggregate of 1401733 shares of common stock par value $.01 per share of

the Company Common Stock at an exercise price of $2.11 per share The Investors sole member is Dinesh Desai the

Companys Chairman Chief Executive Officer and President

All of these securities were sold only to accredited investors as such term is defined in the Securities Act of 1933 as amended the
Securities Act were not registered under the Securities Act or the securities laws of any state and were offered and sold in

reliance on the exemption from registration afforded by Section 42 and Regulation Rule 506 under the Securities Act and

corresponding provisions of state securities law which exempt transactions by an issuer not involving any public offering The

securities were offered for investment purposes only and not for the purpose of resale or distribution and the transfer thereof was
restricted under the terms of the Purchase Agreement

Item Selected Financial Data

Not required for smaller reporting companies
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Reference is made to the Risk Factors outlined in Item 1A for discussion of important factors that could cause actual results to

differ from expectations and any of our forward-looking statements contained herein The following discussion as of August 31 2010

and 2009 should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes which are

contained elsewhere in this Report

Overview of Emtec

We are an IT services provider and we deliver consulting application services and infrastructure services to public sector and

commercial clients The Companys client base is comprised of departments of the United States and Canadas federal

state/provincial and local governments schools and commercial businesses throughout the United States and Canada

Over the last year we have transformed the business by structuring our sales efforts to specific client niche groups referred to as

vertical industry practices verticals such as the federal government school districts state and local governments and commercial

business as well as adding and acquiring new technology practices horizontals in the areas of strategic IT consulting business

application services infrastructure consulting and services This restructuring has helped transform our business into broad based IT

services of lifecycle technology services and managed technology services This restructuring has helped transform our business into

systems integrator and provider of lifecycle technology services and managed technology services

Our primary business objective is to become leading single-source provider of high quality and innovative IT infrastructure and

business application services consulting and managed services

We service our client base from leased facilities in California Georgia Florida Illinois New Jersey Pennsylvania and Virginia in the

United States and in India and Canada

We have historically not been adversely affected by inflation technological advances and competition within the IT industry have

generally caused the prices of the products we sell to decline and product life-cycles tend to be short These factors require that our

growth in unit sales exceed any declines in prices in order for us to increase our net sales

Factors that may affect gross profits in the future include changes in product margins volume incentive rebates and other incentives

offered by various manufacturers changes in technical employee utilization rates the mix of products and services sold the mix of

client type and the decision to aggressively price certain products and services

Factors that may in the future have negative impact on our selling general and administrative expenses for both segments include

costs associated with marketing and selling activities potential merger and acquisition related costs technological improvement costs

compliance costs associated with SEC rules and increases in our insurance costs

In the past we have divided our operating activity into two operating segments for reporting purposes Emtec Infrastructure Services

EIS and Emtec Global Services EGS EIS consisted of the Companys historical business which we referred to as the Systems

Division and the business service management solutions offered by the ITSM practice EGS was the Companys enterprise

applications services solutions and training business including its ERP and Application Development practice and its Business

Analysis and Quality Assurance Practice In 2010 we have maintained these segments for reporting purposes however due to the

amount of cross-selling which occurred in 2010 the addition of SDI into our federal platform and the increase in application services

needs in our systems division platform we will likely re-evaluate our segment reporting for the business in 2011 When comparing

the 2010 results by segment with historical results the reader should take into account the changing nature of our business We will

continue to reassess our segment reporting structure in accordance with ASC 280 Segment Reporting

Quarterly Financial Summary

Over our history our revenues have been largest in the first and fourth quarters of our fiscal years The United States government

typically purchases large amount of its IT needs prior to the end of its fiscal year
which is September 30 The delivery of the

services and products we provide to our government customers has historically been highest during the fourth and first quarters of our

fiscal year which corresponds to the fulfillment of the government purchases Our education clients have historically had the majority

of their services and products delivered by us during the summer months when schools are not in session this has corresponded

typically to our fourth quarter

We believe that as we add to the portfolio of services we are offering our revenues will experience less quarterly fluctuations Some

of the contracts we are now in the process of negotiating with US Government agencies require services and products to be delivered

throughout the year as opposed to the historical delivery timing we have experienced In addition we have diversified our revenue

base through acquisitions and the businesses we have acquired typically deliver services to variety of customers Therefore the

revenues from these businesses have not fluctuated as much quarter to quarter as has our historical business We expect to continue to

develop new practices and acquire companies which may not have seasonal fluctuations and therefore in general we expect our

revenues not to fluctuate as much quarter to quarter in the future as they have in the past
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The consolidated quarterly financial information for the year ended August 31 2010 includes the accounts and transactions of SARK
and SDI with respective acquisition dates of April 2010 and June 2010

Year endedAuffust 31 2010

In thousands except share amounts
First Second Third Fourth Fiscal

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 2010

Revenue 73577 36103 53506 61416 224602

GrossProfit 10544 5902 8081 11268 35795
Net Income Loss 1407 850 35 1035 513
Net Income Loss per share

Basic and Diluted 0.09 0.06 0.00 0.07 0.03

The consolidated quarterly financial information for the year ended August 31 2009 includes the accounts and transactions of KOAN
IT and the assets of EMS as of the respective acquisition dates of February 12 2009 and May 12 2009

Year endedAuust 31 2009

In thousands except share amounts

First Second Third Fourth Fiscal

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 2009

Revenue 70019 41962 49220 62642 223843
Gross Profit 8794 6126 7646 10330 32896
Net Income Loss 1006 385 272 825 1718
Net Income Loss per share

BasicandDiluted 0.07 0.03 0.02 0.06 0.12
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Overview of Consolidated Financial Statements Presented Herein

The consolidated financial information for the year ended August 31 2010 includes the accounts and transactions of SARK and SDI

as of the respective acquisition dates of April 2010 and June 2010 The consolidated financial statements for the year ended

August 31 2009 includes the accounts and transactions of KOAN-IT and the assets of EMS as of the respective acquisition dates of

February 12 2009 and May 12 2009

EMTEC INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

In thousands

Years Ended August 31

2010 2009 Change

Revenues

Procurement services 166130 168020 1890 1.1%

Service and consulting 58472 55823 2649 4.7%

Total Revenues 224602 223843 759 0.3%

Cost of Sales

Cost of procurement services 148104 149631 1527 .0%

Cost of service and consulting 40703 41316 613 1.5%

Total Cost of Sales 188807 190947 2140 1.l%

Gross Profit

Procurement services 18026 18389 363 2.0%

Procurement services 10.9% 10.9%

Service and consulting 17769 14507 3262 22.5%

Service and consulting
30.4% 26.0%

Total Gross Profit 35795 32896 2899 8.8%

Total Gross Profit% 15.9% 14.7%

Operating expenses

Selling general and administrative expenses 30901 26333 4568 17.3%

Stock-based compensation
561 161 400 248.4%

Warrant expense
910 910 N/A

Depreciation and amortization 2405 2320 85 3.7%

Total operating expenses 34777 28814 5963 20.7%

Percent of revenues 15.5% 12.9%

Operating income 1018 4082 3064 75 l%

Percent of revenues 0.5% 1.8%

Other expense income
Interest income other 32 16 16 l00.0%

Interest expense
947 1117 170 15.2%

Other 27 30 10.0%

Income before income taxes 76 2951 2875 97.4%

Provision benefit for income taxes 589 1233 644 52.2%

Net income loss 513 1718 2231 129.9%

Percent of revenues -0.2% 0.8%
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Consolidated Results of Operations Overview

Management examines numerous measures when analyzing the results of our operations Our objective is to grow the overall

revenues gross profit margins and operating profits of the Company

As we diversify our business and grow our consulting services revenues and in particular our applications services revenues we

expect gross margins to increase We measure our selling costs as percentage of gross profits and sales compensation for the

employees of the company is derived from gross profit We expect .that our growth will lead to selling costs increasing but as our

revenues grow we expect our selling costs to grow less quickly than our gross profit thereby decreasing selling costs as percentage
of total gross profits We expect as we grow our general and administrative costs will decrease as percentage of revenue However

we may invest from time to time in additional general and administrative costs in order to be able to grow our revenue more quickly as

market conditions improve

As the Company grows its consulting revenues we expect to focus increasingly on measures such as average billing rates utilization

rates hours billed and hourly consulting costs While we do not publicly report these metrics we analyze these figures to monitor

trends which will enable us to make more effective decisions We are improving our internal systems in order to be able to provide
these metrics more quickly to our management

We currently categorize our revenues and costs of sales into Procurement Services and Services and Consulting We have made

the categorizations in order to analyze our growth in consulting and other services as percentage of overall revenues Traditionally

we have divided our business into two segments Emtec Infrastructure Services EIS provides broad range of IT infrastructure

services for our clients These services are focused on improving the value IT assets provide to an organization and to reduce the

costs of these assets Emtec Global Services EGS was formed to provide IT application consulting and other services These

services typically include business process improvement through the use of technology Our associates are skilled in wide array of

technologies in this segment

Our consolidated operating income and net income loss for the year ended August 31 2010 was $1.0 million and $5 13000 million

respectively as compared to $4.1 million and $1.7 million respectively for the year ended August 31 2009 The decreases in

operating income and net income was primarily attributable to increased selling general and administrative expenses as discussed in

the segment results below However portion of the increase in selling general and administrative expenses for the year ended

August 31 2010 was partially offset by an increase in gross profit margin in service and consulting revenues which is also discussed

below

We discuss the results of each segment below

Results of Operations EIS

The following discussion and analysis provides information that management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding
of our Results of Operations for the fiscal years ended August 31 2010 and 2009

The financial information of ElS for the year ended August 31 2010 includes the accounts and transactions of KOAN-IT EMS and

SDI as of the respective acquisition dates of February 12 2009 May 12 2009 and June 2010
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EIS

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

In thousands

Years Ended August 31

2010 2009 Change

Revenues

Procurement services 166130 168020 1890 l.1%

Service and consulting 28344 19331 9013 46.6%

Total Revenues 194474 187351 7123 3.8%

Cost of Sales

Cost of procurement services 148104 149631 1527 l.0%

Cost of service and consulting 15784 11379 4405 38.7%

Total Cost of Sales 163888 161010 2878 1.8%

Gross Profit

Procurement services 18026 18389 363 2.0%

Procurement services 10.9% 10.9%

Service and consulting 12560 7952 4608 57.9%

Service and consulting 44.3% 1.1%

Total Gross Profit 30586 26341 4245 16.1%

Total Gross Profit 15.7% 14.1%

Operating expenses

Selling general and administrative expenses 25316 21034 4282 20.4%

Stock-based compensation
561 161 400 248.5%

Warrant expense
910 910 0.0%

Depreciation and amortization 1543 1445 98 6.8%

Total operating expenses 28329 22640 5689 25.1%

Percent of revenues 14.6% 12.1%

Operating income 2255 3701 1446 39.l%

Percent of revenues 1.2% 2.0%

Other expense income
Interest income other 29 12 17 141.7%

Interest expense
722 754 32 4.2%

Other 29 24 20.8%

Income before income taxes 1533 2935 1402 47.8%

Provision for income taxes 1033 1282 249 19.4%

Net income 500 1653 1153 69.7%

Percent of revenues 0.3% 0.9%

Comparison of Years Ended August 31 2010 and 2009-EIS

Revenues EIS

EIS divisions total revenues increased $7.1 million or 3.8% to $194.5 million for the year ended August 31 2010 compared to

$187.4 million for the year ended August 31 2009 EIS divisions total revenue includes revenues from the Companys historical

business which we refer to as the Systems Division KOAN-IT which was acquired on February 12 2009 the assets of EMS which

were acquired on May 12 2009 and SDI which was acquired June 2010 SDIs total revenues for the year ended August 31 2010

was $1.5 million KOAN-ITs total revenues including revenues derived from the assets acquired from EMS for the year ended

August 31 2010 increased $3.9 million or 105.7% to $7.5 million The increase is primarily result of having owned KOAN-IT for

the entire fiscal year of 2010 Without these acquisitions Systems Divisions revenue increased $1.8 million or 1.2% to $185.5

million for the year ended August 31 2010 compared to $183.7 million for the year ended August 31 2009
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Procurement services revenue decreased $1.9 million or 1.1% to $166.1 million for the year ended August 31 2010 compared to

$168.0 million for the year ended August 31 2009 We believe that this decrease in revenues was attributed to the economic downturn

and the deferral of some larger IT projects to future quarters

Service and consulting revenue increased $9.0 million or 46.6% to $28.3 million for the year ended August 31 2010 compared to

$19.3 million for the year ended August 31 2009 This increase is mainly attributable to assuming role of prime contractor for one

of our clients the acquisition of SDI and full year of operations of KOAN-IT

Our EIS divisions revenues by client type are comprised of the following in thousands

For the Years Ended

August 31 2010 August 31 2009

Departments of the

U.S Government 104598 53.8% 85044 45.4%

Canadian Government Agencies 2509 1.3% 771 0.4%

State and Local Governments 4105 2.1% 7333 3.9%

Commercial Companies 21363 11.0% 29103 15.5%

Education and other 61899 31.8% 65100 34.7%

Total Revenues 194474 100.0% 187351 100.0%

During the year ended August 31 2010 and 2009 U.S governmental department and agency related revenues represented

approximately 53.8% and 45.4% of total EIS revenues respectively These clients include the Department of Defense Department of

Justice Department of Homeland Security Department of Health and Human Services Department of Agriculture and Department of

Commerce Revenues from various civilian and military U.S governmental departments and agencies increased by approximately

$19.5 million or 22.9% to $104.6 million during the year ended August 31 2010 compared with the year ended August 31
2009 During our 2009 fiscal year we restructured our federal sales force to focus more on services as well as multi-year

awards The goal for 2010 was to stabilize the procurement services revenue back to previous levels and then secondly to increase

our federal clients awareness of our services offerings The increase in federal procurements services sales accounts for nearly all the

growth in our federal vertical In general we expect that federal government business revenues will continue to represent large

portion of our total revenues as we continue to strive to penetrate wider and deeper into various civilian and military agencies The

federal government business typically experiences increased activity during the months of August through November

The state and local government business remains uncertain due to the tight budgetary pressures within governmental agencies

primarily in the State of New Jersey Until tax revenues increase in state and local governments we will not see large amount of

growth from these clients

Revenues from commercial clients decreased by approximately $7.7 million or 26.5% to $21.4 million during the year ended August

31 2010 compared with the year ended August 31 2009 This decrease is mainly due to the economic downturn that caused

reductions in technology and discretionary spending by our commercial clients We have taken steps to reposition our sales force to

sell more services and long-term projects and managed services with our commercial clients We expect to see growth in the

commercial sector as the economy recovers and we are able to offer our clients wider range of services

During the year ended August 31 2010 revenues from our education business decreased by approximately $3.2 million compared

with the year ended August 31 2009 This decrease is attributable to reduction in purchases of hardware by our education clients

during the year ended August 31 2010 In 2009 our largest client had number of new schools constructed which required

significant procurement services During 2010 the number of new schools being built decreased However we increased our

services revenues with this client in 2010 During our fiscal years 2008 and 2009 we took steps to increase our business with our

existing customers by outsourcing more of their infrastructure managed services needs and to increase our penetration with additional

clients in this market These steps increased the amount of long-term recurring revenue we have with these clients and we believe

because of the strength of our offering and knowledge in this segment we will be able to increase our client base

Gross Profit EIS

Aggregate gross profit for our EIS division increased $4.2 million or 16.1% to $30.6 million for the year ended August 31 2010 as

compared to $26.3 million for the year ended August 31 2009 This increase was mainly due to an increase in the gross profit derived

from our services and consulting revenues of $4.6 million which resulted from higher margin sales This services gross profit increase

included an increase of $1.4 million from KOAN-IT and an increase of $806000 from SDI The increase in gross profit was offset

by slight decrease of $363000 in our procurement services gross profit for the year ended August 31 2010 as compared to the year
ended August 31 2009 which resulted from the decline in procurement services revenue

Measured as percentage of revenues our gross profit margin for EIS division increased to 15.7% of our ElS divisions revenues for

the year ended August 31 2010 from 14.1% for the year ended August 31 2009 This increase is primarily result of an increase in

our service and consulting gross profit margin attributable to higher utilization of our engineering resources and increase in our
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services and consulting revenue associated with IT projects for school districts in New Jersey Florida and Georgia during the year

ended August 31 2010

Sellin General and Administrative Expenses EIS

Corporate expenses are primarily recorded in our EIS segment Selling general and administrative expenses for our EIS division

increased by $4.3 million or 20.4% to $25.3 million for the year ended August 31 2010 compared to $21.0 million for the year ended

August 31 2009

EIS divisions selling general and administrative expenses includes selling general and administrative expenses from Systems

Division KOAN-IT and SDI KOAN-ITs selling general and administrative expenses including selling general and administrative

expenses related to the assets acquired from EMS for the year ended August 31 2010 increased by $682000 The increase is

primarily result of our having owned KOAN-IT for the entire fiscal year of 2010 SDI had selling general and administrative

expenses of $640000 for the year ended August 31 2010 There was approximately $1 million in investment in new management at

the executive level in 2010 We also invested approximately $1 million in combination of new sales personnel and new sales

compensation structure focused on selling our new lines of services and recurring services Additionally we had approximately

$700000 in increased management information systems costs in conjunction with improving our IT systems to manage larger IT

services business There were also increases in expense categories such as travel and lodging merger and acquisition related expenses

and professional fees that were off-set by commercial infrastructure restructuring where we eliminated sales and support

positions This cost reduction restructuring in our commercial infrastructure business is expected to result in the elimination of

approximately $2.1 million in annualized costs

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation for our EIS division increased by $400000 or 248.5% to $561000 for the year ended August 31 2010

compared to $161000 for the year ended August 31 2009 The increase was related to shares which have been awarded to

management as portion of their compensation which vested over the year

Warrant Expense

Warrant expense
for our EIS division was $910000 for the year ended August 31 2010 as compared to $-0- for the year ended

August 31 2009 This expense relates to the stock warrants issued to our majority stockholder during 2010 Going forward this

warrant will be marked-to-market each reporting period which could result in large fluctuations in income or expense on the

statement of operations in future periods related to this non- cash charge

Depreciation and Amortization EIS

Depreciation and amortization expense for our EIS division increased by 6.8% or $98000 to $1.5 million for the year ended August

31 2010 compared to $1.4 million for the year ended August 31 2009 The increase for the year ended August 31 2010 is mainly

attributable to the acquisition of SDI and comparing full year of operations for KOAN-IT for the year ended August 31 2010 to

shorter stub period for the year ended August 31 2009 partially offset by decrease in depreciation expense for software upgrades

that were fully depreciated in the prior year

Operating Income EIS

Operating income for our EIS division for the year ended August 31 2010 decreased by 39.1% or $1.4 million to $2.3 million

compared to operating income of $3.7 million for the year ended August 31 2009 This decrease in operating income is mainly

attributable to an increase in overall operating expenses as discussed in Selling General and Administrative Expenses Stock-Based

Compensation and Warrant Expense above that was partially offset by increased services and consulting revenue as discussed in the

Total Revenue and Gross Profit sections above

Interest expense EIS

Interest expense for the ElS division decreased by 4.2% or $32000 to $722000 for the year ended August 31 2010 compared to

$754000 for the year ended August 31 2009 This decrease is primarily attributable to lower balances on various notes payable paid

off in fiscal year 2010 and lower average interest rate charged on the line of credit resulting from decrease in the prime rate during

this period

Provision for income taxes EIS

We recorded an income tax expense of $1.0 million for the year ended August 31 2010 as compared to $1.3 million for the year

ended August 31 2009 The effective tax rate was 67.4% for the year ended August 31 2010 as compared to 43.7% for the year ended

August 31 2009 The higher effective tax rate for the year ended August 31 2010 was primarily the result of the warrant expense not

being deductible for income tax purposes If the warrant expense was added-back to taxable income for the year ended August 31

2010 our effective tax rate would have been 42.3%
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Results of Operations EGS

Most of the clients EGS serves are commercial clients While our consultants are typically working on long- term projects the

general economic slowdown has impacted our ability to sell services the way these businesses had typically operated before the

acquisitions In addition it has been our intention to convert these businesses to new sales model and cross-sell their services across

our organization During 2009 we took steps to add additional sales resources in the U.S to change our training methodologies of our

consultants and to shift recruiting resources to an onshore/offshore model We have also defined four practices within EGS that we

are starting to sell as full service practice offerings using projects as opposed to typical staff augmentation We intend for these

changes to help us to grow revenues in 2011 in EGS

The following discussion and analysis provides information that management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding

of our Results of Operations for the fiscal years ended August 31 2010 and 2009

The financial information of EGS for the year ended August 31 2010 and 2009 includes the accounts and transactions of Luceo

eBAS/Aveeva and SARK as of the respective acquisition dates of March 20 2008 August 13 2008 and April 2010
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EGS

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

In thousands

Years Ended August 31

2010 2009 Change

Revenues

Procurement services

Service and consulting 30128 36492 6364 17.4%

Total Revenues 30128 36492 6364 l7.4%

Cost of Sales

Cost of service and consulting 24918 29937 5019 l6.8%

Total Cost of Sales 24918 29937 5019 l6.8%

Gross Profit

Service and consulting 5210 6555 1345 20.5%

Service and consulting 17.3% 18.0%

Total Gross Profit 5210 6555 1345 20.5%

Total Gross Profit 17.3% 18.0%

Operating expenses

Selling general and administrative expenses 5583 5299 284 5.4%

Stock-based compensation
0.0%

Warrant expense
0.0%

Depreciation and amortization 862 875 13 .5%

Total operating expenses 6445 6174 271 4.4%

Percent of revenues 21.4% 16.9%

Operating income loss 1235 381 1616 424.2%

Percent of revenues l% 1.0%

Other expense income
Interest income other 47.8%

Interest expense
225 363 138 38.0%

Other 134.2%

Income loss before income taxes 1456 16 1472 9201 .4%

Provision benefit for income taxes 444 49 395 805.5%

Net income loss 1013 65 1078 1657.7%

Percent of revenues 3.4% 0.2%

Comparison of Years Ended August 31 2010 and 2009-EGS

Revenues EGS

EGS revenue consists of its ERP and Application Development practice and its Business Analysis and Quality Assurance

practice EGS divisions total revenues decreased $6.4 million or 17.4% to $30.1 million for the year ended August 31 2010

compared to $36.5 million for the year ended August 31 2009 This decline was caused by an 11.4% decrease in hours billed and

7.2% decrease in the average hourly billing rate during the year ended August 31 2010 compared with the corresponding year ended

August 31 2009 The decrease in billable hours and rate is mainly due to the decrease in our Business Analysis and Quality

Assurance practices Most of the clients EGS serves are commercial clients and we believe that this decrease in commercial business

was primarily attributable to the general economic downturn Since many of the consultants get placed on long term projects the

immediate impact of the downturn was not felt until number of these contracts were completed in 2010 Because of drop in the

number of new projects in 2009 and 2010 there will be lag experienced in the recovery of these businesses In 2010 we saw

increases in our ERP application development business while our business analysis and quality assurance business continue to

experience declines
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Gross ProIi EGS

EGS divisions gross profit decreased $1.3 million or 20.5% to $5.2 million for the year ended August 31 2010 compared to $6.6

million for the year ended August 31 2009 We believe this decrease is mainly due to the economic downturn as discussed in the

Revenue section above

Measured as percentages of revenues our gross profit margin for the EGS division decreased to 17.3% of our EGS divisions revenues

for the year ended August 31 2010 from 18.0% for the year ended August 31 2009 We believe this decrease is mainly due to the

decreased billing rate per hour that resulted from pricing pressure from our commercial clients

Selling General and Administrative Expenses EGS

EGS divisions selling general and administrative expenses increased $284000 or 5.4% to $5.6 million for the year ended August

31 2010 compared to $5.3 million for the year ended August 31 2010 The increase in selling general and administrative expenses

between the years ended August 31 2010 and August 31 2009 is primarily related to increases in salaries bad debt expense office

expense and system management costs In connection with the EGS acquisitions discussed above we entered into employment

agreements with former shareholders and selected management personnel of the acquired companies that provided for retention and/or

performance bonuses Retention and performance bonuses expenses reflected in selling general and administrative expenses include

$921000 in 2010 and $932000 in 2009

Depreciation and Amortization EGS

EGS divisions depreciation and amortization expense decreased $13000 or 1.5% to $862000 for the year ended August 31 2010

compared to $875000 for the year ended August 31 2009 The decrease is mainly due to an adjustment of the useful life of certain

assets in the year ended August 31 2010

Operating income loss EGS

Operating loss for our EGS division for the year ended August 31 2010 was $1.2 million compared to operating income of $381000

for the year ended August 31 2009 This decrease in operating income is mainly due to the bonuses and the decreases described in

the Revenue Gross Profit and Selling General and Administrative sections above

Interest expense EGS

Interest expense for our EGS division for the year ended August 31 2010 decreased by 38.0% or $138000 to $225000 compared to

interest expense of $363000 for the year ended August 31 2009 This is primarily attributable to the absence of interest costs related

to an 8% subordinated note payable which was paid in full in September 2009 and lower average interest rate charged on the line of

credit attributable to decrease in the prime rate during this period

Provision for income taxes EGS

We recorded an income tax benefit of $444000 for the year ended August 31 2010 as compared to income tax benefit of $49000 for

the year ended August 31 2009 The increase in the income tax benefit for the year ended August 31 2010 was the result of loss

before income taxes for the year

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Determination of the Useful Lfe of Intangible Assets

In April 2008 FASB ASC 350-30 Intangible Goodwill and Other amended the factors to be considered in assumptions used to

determine the useful lives of recognized intangible assets The new guidance applies to intangible assets with contractual lives that are

acquired individually or with group of assets as well as those assets acquired in business combination The new guidance is

effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008 and subsequent interim periods We adopted the statement on

September 2009 which is the beginning of our 2010 fiscal year The adoption of ASC 50-30 has not had significant impact on

our consolidated financial position or results of operations

Warrants

Effective as of September 2009 the Company adopted FASB ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedging relating to the recording and

disclosure of warrants This guidance applies to freestanding contracts that are indexed to and potentially in an entitys own stock

The Company calculates and records the fair value of the
liability

associated with warrants using an acceptable valuation model

Black-Scholes method at each reporting period In connection with the issuance of warrants and compliance with FASB ASC 815

the Company recorded liability on August 2010 of $916000 At August 31 2010 the net liability and net expense of $910000 is

recorded on the Balance Sheet and Consolidated Statement of Operations
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Subsequent Events

In February 2010 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued amended guidance on subsequent events Under this

amended guidance SEC filers are no longer required to disclose the date through which subsequent events have been evaluated in

originally issued and revised financial statements This guidance was effective immediately and we adopted these new requirements

for the period ended February 28 2010

Accounts Receivable

In July 2010 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU 2010-20 Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing

Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses ASU 2010-20 requires more robust and disaggregated disclosures about the credit

quality of financing receivables and allowances for credit losses including disclosure about credit quality indicators past due

information and modifications of finance receivables The disclosures as of the end of reporting period are effective for interim and

annual reporting periods ending on and after December 15 2010 The disclosures about activity that occurs during reporting period

are effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning on or after December 15 2010 The adoption of this guidance may

expand the existing disclosure requirements which the Company is currently evaluating

Revenue Recognition

In October 2009 the FASB issued ASU 2009-13 Revenue Recognition Topic 605 Multiple Deliverable Revenue Arrangements

which amends ASC 605 Revenue Recognition to permit companies to allocate revenue in multiple-element arrangements based on an

elements estimated selling price if vendor-specific or other third-party evidence of value is not available ASU 2009-13 is effective

prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15 2010 Earlier

application is permitted
The adoption of this ASU is not expected to have material impact on the Companys financial position

results of operations or cash flows

In October 2009 the FASB issued ASU No 2009-14 Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software Elements ASU 2009-14

modifies the software revenue recognition guidance to exclude from its scope tangible products that contain both software and non-

software components that function together to deliver products
essential functionality ASU 2009-14 is effective for revenue

arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15 2010 Early promotion is

permitted The adoption of this ASU is not expected to have material impact on the Companys financial position results of

operation or cash flows

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash at August 31 2010 of $2.4 million represented an increase Of approximately $700000 from cash of $1.7 million at August 31

2009 We are net borrower consequently we believe our cash balance must be viewed along with the available balance on our line

of credit Borrowings under our line of credit at August 31 2010 increased to $16.0 million from $9.0 million at August 31 2009

The increase in our line of credit is primarily due to an increase in receivables and decrease in accounts payable totaling to $7.3

million which was off-set by decrease in inventories of $2.9 million these items netted an increase of $4.4 million The increase is

receivable is mainly due to increase in days sales outstanding DSO from 48 days in 2009 to 56 days in 2010 as result of an

increase in the amount of revenues from our Federal clients Our Federal clients typically have higher DSO for procurement

services Additionally during the fiscal year ended August 31 2010 the acquisitions of SARK SDI and earn-out payments
related

Luceo and KOAN-IT totaled to approximately $2.7 million which were funded through borrowings under the line of credit

The Company Emtec NJ Emtec LLC Emtec Federal Emtec Global Luceo eBAS and Aveeva collectively the Borrower are

parties to Loan and Security Agreement with De Lage Landen Financial Services Inc the Lender pursuant to which the Lender

provides the Borrower with revolving credit loan and floor plan loan the Credit Facility until December 2010 The Company

is currently in the process of negotiating two year renewal of its Credit Facility with the Lender and anticipates the renewal will be

completed prior to December 2010 which is the expiration date of the existing Credit Facility The Credit Facility currently

provides for aggregate borrowings of the lesser of $32.0 million or 85% of Borrowers eligible accounts receivable plus 100% of

unsold inventory financed by the Lender and 40% of all other inventory The floor plan loan portion of the Credit Facility is for the

purchase of inventory from approved vendors and for other business purposes The Credit Facility subjects the Borrower to mandatory

repayments upon the occurrence of certain events as set forth in the Credit Facility For detailed information on terms of the Credit

Facility refer to footnote Line of Credit of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report the Form 10-K

for the fiscal year ended August 31 2010

The Company had balances of $16.0 million and $9.0 million outstanding under the revolving portion of the Credit Facility and

balances of $3.4 million and $5.4 million included in the Companys accounts payable outstanding plus $723000 and $321000 in

open approvals under the floor plan portion of the Credit Facility at August 31 2010 and 2009 respectively Net availability was $6.8

million and $11.9 million under the revolving portion of the Credit Facility and additionally $5.0 million and $5.4 million was

available under the floor plan portion of the Credit Facility as of August 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

As of August 31 2010 the Company determined that it was in compliance with its covenants under the Credit Facility
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We are currently in the process of negotiating two year renewal of the Credit Facility with the Lender and we anticipate the renewal
will be completed prior to December 2010 which is the expiration date of the existing Credit Facility

As of August 31 2010 we had open credit terms with our primary trade vendors including aggregators and manufacturers of

approximately $41.5 million with outstanding principal of approximately $26.5 million Under these lines we are typically obligated

to pay each invoice within 0-45 days from the date of such invoice These credit lines could be reduced or eliminated without notice

and this action could have material adverse affect on our business result of operations and financial condition

Capital expenditures of approximately $1.1 million during the year ended August 31 2010 related primarily to the purchase of

computer equipment for internal use phone system upgrades purchase of automobiles for our service technicians leasehold

improvements furniture and fixtures for our offices and software costs to upgrade various modules of our accounting systems

The following are our long-term contractual obligations for leases debt and other long-term liabilities as of August 31 2010

Payments due by period

in thousands

Less than More than

Contractual Obligations Total year 1-3 years 4-5 years years

Operating Lease Obligations 5711 1701 2383 1617
Other Long-Term Liabilities Reflected on the

Companys Balance Sheet under GAAP 676 202 474

Total 6387 1911 2857 1617

This does not include the total Credit Facility in the amount of $19.4 million that is due December 2010 that is classified as

current liability on our consolidated balance sheet at August 31 2010 We are currently in the process of negotiating two year
renewal of the Credit Facility with the Lender and we anticipate the renewal will be completed prior to December 2010 which is

the expiration date of the existing Credit Facility

We anticipate that our primary sources of liquidity in fiscal year 2011 will be cash generated from operations trade vendor credit and
cash available to us under our Credit Facility in the event it is extended Our future financial performance will depend on our ability
to continue to reduce and manage operating expenses as well as our ability to grow revenues Any loss of clients whether due to price

competition or technological advances will have an adverse affect on our revenues Our future financial performance could be

negatively affected by unforeseen factors and unplanned expenses See Forward Looking Statements and Risk Factors

We have no arrangements or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons that are reasonably likely to materially
affect liquidity or the availability of or requirements for capital resources

We believe that funds generated from operations trade vendor credit and bank borrowings should be sufficient to meet our current

operating cash requirements through at least the next twelve months However there can be no assurance that all of the

aforementioned sources of cash can be realized

CriticalAccounting Policies

Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles that are generally accepted in the United States The

methods estimates and judgments we use in applying our most critical accounting policies have significant impact on the results we
report in our financial statements The SEC has defined critical accounting policies as policies that involve critical accounting
estimates that require management to make assumptions that are highly uncertain at the time the estimate is made and ii different

estimates that could have been reasonably used for the current period or changes in the estimates that are reasonably likely to occur
from period to period which would have material impact on the presentation of our financial condition changes in financial

condition or in result of operations Based on this definition our most critical policies include revenue recognition allowance for

doubtful accounts inventory valuation reserve the assessment of recoverability of long-lived assets the assessment of recoverability
of goodwill and intangible assets rebates and income taxes

Revenue Recognition

We are an IT Services provider delivering consulting staffing application services and infrastructure solutions to commercial federal

education state and local government clients Our specific practices include IT consulting communications data management
enterprise computing managed services business service management solutions training storage and data center planning and

development and staff augmentation solutions

In accordance with paragraph 40 FASB Topic ASC paragraph 280-10-50 it is impracticable for us to report the revenues from
external customers for each of our products and services or each group of similar products and services offered Our revenue
recognition policy is as follows
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We recognize revenue from the sales of products when risk of loss and title passes which is upon client acceptance

Product revenue represents sales of computer hardware and pre-packaged software These arrangements often include software

installations configurations and imaging along with delivery and set-up of hardware We follow the criteria contained in Staff

Accounting Bulletin 104 SAB 104 in recognizing revenue associated with these transactions We perform software installations

configurations and imaging services at our locations prior to the delivery of the product Some client arrangements include set-up

services performed at client locations where our personnel perform the routine tasks of removing the equipment from boxes and

setting up the equipment at client workstations by plugging in all necessary connections This service is usually performed the same

day as delivery Revenue is recognized on the date of acceptance except as follows

In some instances the set-up service is performed after date of delivery We recognize revenue for the hardware

component at date of delivery when the amount of revenue allocable to this component is not contingent upon the completion

of set-up services and therefore our client has agreed that the transaction is complete as to the hardware component In

instances where our client does not accept delivery until set-up services are completed we defer all revenue in the

transaction until client acceptance occurs

There are occasions when client requests transaction on bill and hold basis We follow the SAB 104 criteria and

recognize revenue from these sales prior to date of physical delivery only when all the criteria of SAB 104 are met We do

not modify our normal billing and credit terms for these clients The client is invoiced at the date of revenue recognition

when all of the criteria have been met As of August 31 2010 and 2009 we did not have any bill and hold transactions

We have experienced minimal client returns Since some eligible products must be returned to us within 30 days from the date of the

invoice we reduce the product revenue and cost of goods in each accounting period based on the actual returns that occurred in the

next 30 days after the close of the accounting period

Revenue from the sale of warranties and support service contracts is recognized on straight-line basis over the term of the contract

We recognize revenue from sale arrangements that contain both procurement revenue and services and consulting revenue based on

the relative fair value of the individual components The relative fair value of individual components is based on historical sales of the

components sold separately

Revenues from the sale of third party manufacturer warranties and manufacturer support service contracts where the manufacturer is

responsible for fulfilling the service requirements of the client are recognized immediately on their contract sale date Manufacturer

support service contracts contain cancellation privileges that allow our clients to terminate contract with 90 days written notice In

this event the client is entitled to pro-rated refund based on the remaining term of the contract and we would owe the manufacturer

pro-rated refund of the cost of the contract However we have experienced no client cancellations of any significance during our

most recent 3-year history and we do not expect cancellations of any significance in the future As the Company is not obligated to

perform these services we determined it is more appropriate to recognize the net amount of the revenue and related payments as net

revenue at the time of sale

Services and consulting revenue includes time billings based upon billable hours charged to clients fixed price short-term projects

and hardware maintenance contracts These contracts generally are task specific and do not involve multiple deliverables Revenues

from time billings are recognized as services are delivered Revenues from short-term fixed price projects are recognized using the

proportionate performance method by determining the level of service performed based upon the amount of labor cost incurred on the

project versus the total labor costs to perform the project because this is the most readily reliable measure of output Revenues from

hardware maintenance contracts are recognized ratably over the contract period

Allowance For Doubtful Accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our clients to make required

payments We base our estimates on the aging of our accounts receivable balances and our historical write-off experience net of

recoveries If the financial condition of our clients were to deteriorate additional allowances may be required We believe the

accounting estimate related to the allowance for doubtful accounts is critical accounting estimate because changes in it can

significantly affect net income

Inventory Valuation

Inventory is stated at the lower of average cost or market Inventory is entirely finished goods purchased for resale and consists of

computer hardware computer software computer peripherals and related supplies We provide an inventory reserve for products we

determine are obsolete or where salability has deteriorated based on managements review of products and sales

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents costs in excess of fair values assigned to the underlying net assets of acquired companies In accordance with

ASC 350 Intangibles-Goodwill and Others goodwill is not amortized but tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events
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or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired The Company has set an annual impairment testing date of

June The impairment determination is made at the reporting unit level and consists of two steps First the Company determines the

fair value of the reporting unit and compares it to its carrying amount Second if the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its

fair value an impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying amount of the reporting units goodwill over the implied

fair value of that goodwill The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit in

manner similar to purchase price allocation in accordance with ASC 805 Business Combinations The residual fair value after this

allocation is the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill The Companys policy is to perform its annual impairment testing

for all reporting units as of June An impairment charge will be recognized only when the implied fair value of reporting unit

including goodwill is less than its carrying amount

Intangible assets are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not

be recoverable in accordance with ASC 350 Intangibles-Goodwill and Others Recoverability of long-lived assets is assessed by

comparison of the carrying amount to the estimated undiscounted future net cash flows expected to result from the use of the assets

and their eventual disposition If estimated undiscounted future net cash flows are less than the carrying amount the asset is

considered impaired and loss would be recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the

asset

Warrants

FASB ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedging applies to freestanding contracts that are indexed to and potentially in an entitys own

stock The Company calculates and records the fair value of the
liability

associated with warrants using an acceptable valuation model

Black-Scholes model at each reporting period

Rebates

Rebates are recorded in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as reduction of the cost of revenues

Common Stock with Put Options

FASB ASC 480 Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures in its balance

sheet certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity Financial instruments that are within the scope of

ASC 480 must be classified as liabilities because that obligation embodies an obligation of the issuer

Financial instruments within the scope of ASC 480 must represent an obligation on the part of the issuer An obligation is

conditional or unconditional duty or responsibility to transfer assets or to issue equity shares Some financial instruments represent

conditional obligation on the part of the issuer That is the issuer is not obligated to perform under the financial instrument unless and

until specified condition has been satisfied financial instrument that represents conditional obligation to transfer assets or issue

equity shares may be within the scope of ASC 480

Also to be within the scope of ASC 480 financial instrument is required to be freestanding freestanding financial instrument is

financial instrument that is entered into separately and apart from any of the entitys other financial instruments or equity

transactions or in conjunction with some other transaction and is legally detachable and separately exercisable

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under an asset and liability approach that requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities

for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in our financial statements or tax returns In estimating

future tax consequences we generally consider all expected future events other than the enactment of changes in tax laws or rates

valuation allowance is recognized if on weight of available evidence it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred

tax assets will not be realized

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any material off-balance sheet arrangements

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Not Applicable
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders

Emtec Inc

Springfield New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Emtec Inc and Subsidiaries the Company as of August 31

2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of operations
cash flows and stockholders equity for the years then

ended These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement The Company is not required to have nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its

internal control over financial reporting Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for

designing audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also

includes examining on test basis evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects
the financial position of

Emtec Inc and Subsidiaries as of August 31 2010 and 2009 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years
then

ended in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

Is McGladery Pullen LLP

Blue Bell Pennsylvania

November 24 2010
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EMTEC iNC AND SUBSIDIARJES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
In Thousands Except per Share and Share Data

August 31 2010 August 31 2009
Assets

Current Assets

Cash
2372 1713

Receivables

Trade less allowance for doubtful accounts 36262 29463
Other

2019 2184
Inventories net

1515 4410
Prepaid expenses and other

2977 2184
Deferred tax asset current

898 680
Total current assets

46043 40634
Property and equipment net

2211 1390
Intangible assets net

11522 11235
Goodwill

13979 11424
Deferred tax asset- long term

411 459
Other assets

106 131

Total assets
74272 65273

Liabilities Put Options and Stockholders Equity
Current Liabilities

Line of credit
16023 9035

Accounts payable 24666 25390
Warrant

liability
910

Current portion of long term debt related party 1213
Income taxes payable

341 590
Accrued liabilities

8027 6723Due to former stockholders

Customer deposits 202
Deferred revenue

2150 2103
Total current liabilities

52325 45054
Deferred tax liability- long term

3063 2816
Earn-out liability-SDI

676
Accrued liabilities

183 180
Total liabilities

56247 48050
Commitments and contingencies Note 15
Put options in connection with SDI acquisition 738
Stockholders Equity

Common stock $0.01 par value 25000000 shares authorized

18984520 and 18059679 shares issued and 16119931 and 15195090
outstanding at August 31 2010 and August 31 2009 respectively 190 181
Additional paid-in capital

21346 20794
Retained earnings

1158 1671
Accumulated other comprehensive income

189 173

22883 22819
Less treasury stock at cost 2864589 shares 5596 5596

Total stockholders equity 17287 17223
Total liabilities put options and stockholders equity 74272 65273

The Accompanying Notes are Integral Parts of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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EMTEC INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

In Thousands Except per Share and Share Data

For the Years Ended August 31

2010 2009

Revenues

Procurement services 166130 168020

Service and consulting 58472 55823

Total Revenues 224602 223843

Cost of Sales

Cost of procurement services 148104 149631

Cost of service and consulting 40703 41316

Total Cost of Sales 188807 190947

Gross Profit

Procurement services 18026 18389

Service and consulting 17769 14507

Total Gross Profit 35795 32896

Operating expenses

Selling general and administrative expenses 30901 26333

Stock-based compensation
561 161

Warrant expense
910

Depreciation and amortization 2405 2320

Total operating expenses
34777 28814

Operating income 1018 4082

Other expense income
Interest income other 32 16
Interest expense

947 1117

Other expense
27 30

Income before income taxes 76 2951

Provision for income taxes
589 1233

Net income loss 513 1718

Net income loss per common share

Basic and Diluted 0.03 0.12

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding

Basic 15127166 14629231

Diluted 15127166 14845217

The Accompanying Notes are Integral Parts of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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EMTEC INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
In Thousands

For the Years Ended August 31
2010 2009

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net income loss 513 1718

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income loss to Net

Cash Provided By Used In Operating Activities

Depreciation and amortization 707 806

Amortization related to intangible assets 1698 1514
Deferred income taxes benefit 776 305
Stock-based compensation 561 161

Indemnification of professional fees 270
Warrant liability 910

Changes In Operating Assets and Liabilities

Receivables 6567 3653
Inventories 2895 3750
Prepaid expenses and other assets 743 517
Accounts payable 728
Customer deposits 202

Income taxes payable 249 307

Accrued liabilities 1282 1096
Due to Former Stockholders

Deferred revenue 17 215
Net Cash Provided By Used In Operating Activities 1298 4191

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Purchases of property and equipment 1094 1011
Acquisition of businesses net of cash acquired 2143 1342
Acquisitions related contingent earnout 596
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities 3833 2353

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Net increase in line of credit 6988 452

Repayment of debt 1228 2811
Net Cash Provided By Used In Financing Activities 5760 2359

Effect of rate changes on cash 30 209

Net Increase decrease in Cash 659 312
Beginning Cash 1713 2025

Ending Cash 2372 1713

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Cash paid during the period for

Income taxes 2177 879

Interest 879 922

Supplemental Schedule of Non Cash Investing and Financing Activities

Indemnification receivable due from former shareholders settled by the

amounts

due to former shareholders 631

Note payable issued acquisition of Capital Stock of Koan-IT 458

The Accompanying Notes are Integral Parts of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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EMTEC INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31 2010 AND 2009

In thousands except share data

Retained Accumulated

Common Stock Additional Earnings Other Treasury Total

Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive Stock Stockholders

Shares Amount Capital Deficit Income at Cost Equity

Balance at August 31 2008 17714180 177 20636 47 5596 15170

Stock-based

compensation 345499 158 162

Cumulative translation

adjustment 173 173

Net income 1718 1718

Balance at August 31 2009 18059679 181 20794 1671 173 5596 17223

Stock-based

compensation 749841 554 561

Acquisition of SDI 175000

Cumulative translation

adjustment 16 16

Net income 513 513

Balance at August 31 2010 18984520 190 21346 1158 189 5596 17287

The Accompanying Notes are Integral Parts of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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EMTEC INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Organization

Business

Emtec Inc Delaware corporation the Company is an information technology IT systems integrator providing consulting

application services and infrastructure services to public sector and commercial clients The Companys client base is comprised of

departments of the United States and Canadas federal state/provincial and local governments and schools and commercial businesses

throughout the United States and Canada

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries Emtec Inc New

Jersey Corporation Emtec NJ Emtec Viasub LLC Emtec LLC Emtec LLCs wholly-owned subsidiary Emtec Federal Inc

Emtec Federal Emtec Global Services LLC EGSLLC EGSLLCs wholly-owned subsidiaries Luceo Inc Luceo
eBusiness Application Solutions Inc eBAS Aveeva Inc Aveeva Emtec Services Mauritius Emtec Mauritius and Emtec

Mauritiuss subsidiary Emtec Software India Private Limited Emtec India formerly Aviance Software India Private Limited

Aviance Emtec Infrastructure Services Corporation EIS-US and EIS-USs wholly-owned subsidiaries Emtec Infrastructure

Services Canada Corporation EIS-Canada which is referred to in this report as KOAN-IT KOAN-IT US Corp KOAN-T

US and Secure Data Inc SDI Significant intercompany account balances and transactions have been eliminated in

consolidation

Segment Reporting

The Company divides its operating activity into two operating segments for reporting purposes
Emtec Infrastructure Services

Division EIS and Emtec Global Services Division EGS EIS consists of the Companys historical business Systems

Division which includes Emtec NJ Emtec LLC Emtec Federal and the business service management solutions offered by the

Information Technology Service Management ITSM practice EGS is the Companys enterprise applications services solutions

and training business including its Enterprise Resource Planning ERP and Application Development Practice and its Business

Analysis and Quality Assurance Practice

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year balances in order to conform to current presentations

FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

The Company identifies the FASB Accounting Standards Codification FASB ASC or ASC as the authoritative source of GAAP

in the United States Rules and interpretive releases of the SEC under federal securities laws are also sources of authoritative GAAP

for SEC registrants

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the

reporting period including but not limited to receivable valuations impairment of goodwill and other long-lived assets and income

taxes Managements estimates are based on historical experience facts and circumstances available at the time and various other

assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances The Company reviews these matters and reflects changes in

estimates as deemed appropriate Actual results could differ materially from those estimates

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company typically maintains cash at major financial institutions At times throughout the year bank account balances exceed

FDIC insurance limits $250000 per account

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist principally of accounts receivable
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The Companys revenues by client type consist of the following in thousands

For the Years Ended

August 31 2010 August 31 2009

Departments of the U.S Government 104598 46.6% 85044 38.0%

Canadian Government Agencies 2509 1.0% 771 0.3%

State and Local Governments 4105 1.8% 7333 3.3%

Commercial Companies 51491 23.0% 65595 29.3%

Education and other 61899 27.6% 65100 29.1%

Total Revenues 224602 100.0% 223843 100.0%

The Company reviews clients credit history before extending credit The Company does not require collateral or other security to

support credit sales The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the credit risk of specific clients historical

experience and other identified risks Trade receivables are carried at original invoice less an estimate made for doubtful receivables

based on review by management of all outstanding amounts on periodic basis Trade receivables are considered delinquent when

payment is not received within standard terms of sale and are charged-off against the allowance for doubtful accounts when

management determines that recovery is unlikely and ceases its collection efforts

Major Customers

Sales to one school district accounted for approximately $41.2 million or 18.4% of the Companys total revenues for the twelve

months ended August 31 2010 The same customer accounted for approximately $44.3 million or 19.8% of the Companys total

revenue for the twelve months ended August 31 2009 Trade receivables due from the school district accounted for approximately

18.2% of the Companys trade receivables as of August 31 2010 The same client accounted for approximately 14.4% of the

Companys trade receivables as of August 31 2009

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In accordance with FASB ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures the carrying amounts of trade receivables other

receivables accounts payable accrued expenses and client deposits approximate fair value because of their short-term nature The

carrying amount of the Credit Facility and the carrying value of other long-term debt approximate its fair value due to the proximity of

its maturity date

Business Combinations

The Company follows applicable sections of ASC 805 Business Combinations that address accounting for assets acquired and

liabilities assumed in business combination that arise from contingencies These applicable sections address application issues raised

on the initial recognition and measurement subsequent measurement and accounting and disclosure of assets and liabilities arising

from contingencies in business combination

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the sales of products when risk of loss and title passes which is upon client acceptance

Product revenue represents
sales of computer hardware and pre-packaged software These arrangements often include software

installations configurations and imaging along with delivery and set-up of hardware We follow the criteria contained in FASB ASC

605-25 Revenue Recognition Multiple-Element Arrangement in recognizing revenue associated with these transactions We perform

software installations configurations and imaging services at our locations prior to the delivery of the product Some client

arrangements include set-up services performed at client locations where our personnel perform the routine tasks of removing the

equipment from boxes and setting up the equipment at client workstations by plugging in all necessary connections This service is

usually performed the same day as delivery Revenue is recognized on the date of acceptance except as follows

In some instances the set-up service is performed after date of delivery We recognize revenue for the hardware

component at date of delivery when the amount of revenue allocable to this component is not contingent upon the

completion of set-up services and therefore our client has agreed that the transaction is complete as to the hardware

component In instances where our client does not accept delivery until set-up services are completed we defer all

revenue in the transaction until client acceptance occurs

There are occasions when client requests transaction on bill and hold basis We follow the FASB ASC 605-25

criteria and recognize revenue from these sales prior to date of physical delivery only when all the criteria of FASB ASC

605-25 are met We do not modify our normal billing and credit terms for these clients The client is invoiced at the date of

revenue recognition when all of the criteria have been met As of August 31 2010 and 2009 we did not have any bill and

hold transactions
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We have experienced minimal client returns Since some eligible products must be returned to us within 30 days from the date of the

invoice we reduce the product revenue and cost of goods in each accounting period based on the actual returns that occurred in the

next 30 days after the close of the accounting period

Revenue from the sale of warranties and support service contracts is recognized on straight-line basis over the term of the contract

in accordance with FASB ASC 605-20 Revenue Recognition Services

The Company recognizes revenue from sale arrangements that contain both procurement revenue and services and consulting revenue

in accordance with FASB ASC 605-25 based on the relative fair value of the individual components The relative fair value of

individual components is based on historical sales of the components sold separately

Revenues from the sale of third party manufacturer warranties and manufacturer support service contracts where the manufacturer is

responsible for fulfilling the service requirements of the client are recognized immediately on their contract sale date Manufacturer

support service contracts contain cancellation privileges that allow our clients to terminate contract with 90 days written notice In

this event the client is entitled to pro-rated refund based on the remaining term of the contract and the Company would owe the

manufacturer pro-rated refund of the cost of the contract However the Company has experienced no client cancellations of any

significance during our most recent 3-year history and do not expect cancellations of any significance in the future As the Company
is not obligated to perform these services the Company determined it is more appropriate to recognize the net amount of the revenue

and related payments as net revenue at the time of sale pursuant to the guidelines of FASB ASC 605-45 Revenue Recognition

Principal Agent Considerations The Company recorded approximately $3.2 million and $4.0 million in net revenues for these

contracts in the years ended August 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Service and consulting revenue includes time billings based upon billable hours charged to clients fixed price short-term projects and

hardware maintenance contracts These contracts generally are task specific and do not involve multiple deliverables Revenues from

time billings are recognized as services are delivered Revenues from short-term fixed price projects are recognized using the

proportionate performance method by determining the level of service performed based upon the amount of labor cost incurred on the

project versus the total labor costs to perform the project because this is the most readily reliable measure of output Revenues from

hardware maintenance contracts are recognized ratably over the contract period

Rebates

Rebates received on purchased products are recorded in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as reduction of the

cost of revenues in accordance with FASB ASC 605-50 Revenue Recognition Customer Payments and Incentives At August 31
2010 and 2009 approximately $1.7 million and $2.0 million respectively of rebates receivable were recorded in Receivable-other

in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market Inventories consist of finished goods purchased for resale including

computer hardware computer software computer peripherals and related supplies

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost Depreciation and amortization are provided on straight-line basis over the estimated

useful lives of the assets which generally are two to five years Maintenance and repair costs are charged to expense as incurred The

cost and accumulated depreciation relating to property and equipment retired or otherwise disposed of are eliminated from the

accounts and any resulting gains or losses are credited or charged to income
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents costs in excess of fair values assigned to the underlying net assets of acquired companies The changes in the

carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended August 31 2010 and 2009 by reportable segments are as follows in thousands

EIS EGS Total

Balance at August 31 2008 8979 1719 10698

Goodwill acquired during the year 821 821

Foreign currency translation effect of Canadian goodwill 44 44

Increase in goodwill arising from FIN 48 adjustment to

eBAS/Aveeva purchase accounting 23 23

Reduction in goodwill arising from settlement of tax uncertainties

associated with April 16 2004 merger 162 162
Balance at August 31 2009 9682 1742 11424

Foreign currency translation effect of Canadian and India goodwill 23 28

Increase in goodwill arising due to Luceo and Koan-IT acquisition

related earnout payments 316 290 606

Goodwill acquired during the year 1664 257 1921

BalanceatAugust3l2010 11685 2294 13979

In accordance with Accounting Standard Codification ASC 350 Intangibles- Goodwill and Other goodwill is not amortized but

tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset might be

impaired Goodwill is tested for impairment at one level below an operating segment also known as component in accordance with

the guidance of FASB ASC Topic 350 These reporting units are comprised of Systems Division KOAN-IT Luceo eBAS/Aveeva

SARK and SDI The Company has set an annual impairment testing date of June

An impairment charge will be recognized only when the implied fair value of reporting unit including goodwill is less than its

carrying amount The impairment determination is made at the reporting unit level and consists of two steps First the Company
determines the fair value of the reporting unit and compares it to its carrying amount Second if the carrying amount of the reporting

unit exceeds its fair value an impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying amount of the reporting units goodwill

over the implied fair value of that goodwill The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by allocating the fair value of the

reporting unit in manner similar to purchase price allocation in accordance with ASC 805 Business Combinations The residual

fair value after this allocation is the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill

The following table presents summary of the Companys goodwill by reporting unit at August 31 2010 as well as critical

assumptions used in the valuation of the reporting units at June 2010 the Companys annual testing date

Goodwill

Years of Cash By Which Reporting Unit

Terminal Flow before Fair Value Exceeds its

Reporting Unit of total Discount Rate Growth Rate Terminal Value Carrying Value

Systems Division 8818 63.1% 14.5% 4.0% 33.0%

Luceo 1961 14.0% 16.3% 4.0% 3562.0%

eBAS/Aveeva 70 0.5% 15.7% 4.0% 3.0%

KOAN-IT 1204 8.6% 16.5% 4.0% 4597.0%

SARK 262 1.9% n/a n/a n/a n/a

SDI 1664 11.9% n/a n/a n/a n/a

Total 13979 100.0%

AsofJunel2010
Acquired April 2010

Acquired June 2010

The Company determined the fair value of its Systems Division reporting unit using an equally weighted combination of the

discounted cash flow and guideline company valuation approaches For Luceo eBAS/Aveeva and KOAN-IT fair value was

determined using the discounted cash flow valuation approach as in the Companys opinion this method currently results in the most

accurate calculation of fair value for these reporting units The rationale for relying solely on one valuation approach for these

reporting units was that these reporting units were all acquired by the Company within the last three years as of August 31 2010 and

have relatively brief operating histories from which to base comparison to publicly traded companies under the guideline company
valuation approach For SARK and SDI the Company did not test impairment as the acquisition dates for these reporting units were

close to the Companys annual testing date of June 2010
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Determining the fair value of reporting unit requires judgment and the use of significant estimates and assumptions Such estimates

and assumptions include revenue growth rates operating margins discount rates weighted average costs of capital and views on

future market conditions among others We believe that the estimates and assumptions used in our impairment assessments are

reasonable and based on available market information but variations in any of the assumptions could result in materially different

calculations of fair value and determinations of whether or not an impairment is indicated As part of this analysis the Company

engaged an external valuation firm to review and validate the Companys impairment analysis to value its goodwill Management has

reviewed the reports prepared by the external valuation firm for each reporting unit and agrees with the conclusions therein

Under the guideline company approach the Company determined the estimated fair value of its Systems Division by comparison to

prices paid for similar companies The search for guideline companies began with examination of reporting public companies which

were in similar businesses as the Systems Division From this list we identified companies that were similar to the Systems Division

business characteristics with regard to product offerings services performed growth rates profitability and size in terms of assets held

and volume of sales This approach to value is based on the premise that prices paid for the stock of one company can provide an

indication of what willing buyer would pay
for the stock of another company sharing similar characteristics More specifically this

approach involves establishing relationships between th price for shares of similar public companies and certain benchmarks such as

revenues earnings earnings before interest and taxes EBIT and EBITDA net income or book value In valuing the Systems

Division the Company utilized the multiples of market value of capital MVC divided by revenue and MVC/EBITDA of the

selected guideline companies These multiples were applied to the System Divisions operating results for the twelve months ended

May 31 2010 in order to derive fair value under the guideline company approach

Under the discounted cash flow method the Company determined fair value based on the estimated future cash flows of each

reporting unit discounted to present value using risk-adjusted discount rates which reflect the overall level of inherent risk of

reporting unit and the rate of return an outside investor would expect to earn Cash flow projections are derived from budgeted

amounts and operating forecasts typically five-year model plus an estimate of later period cash flows all of which are developed

by the Company Subsequent period cash flows are developed for each reporting unit using growth rates that the Company believes

are reasonably likely to occur along with terminal value derived from the reporting units earnings before interest taxes

depreciation and amortization EBITDA

One of the key assumptions in the five-year budgets which are the basis of the discounted cash flow approach is the projected

revenue growth of each reporting unit For each reporting unit the Company has based its estimate of projected revenue growth on

forecasted revenue growth on macro-level IT industry and overall US economy and micro-level purchasing patterns for specific

customers For other assumptions in the five-year forecasts the Company projected gross profit margins at close to historical levels

investments in variable selling and management overhead costs to support revenue growth and increased fixed operating costs at the

rate of inflation To the extent forecasted revenue is not met for reporting unit the Company still has the ability to achieve

forecasted profitability EBITDA by controlling its cost structure Annual revenue growth for each reporting unit is forecasted to be

at higher level in the initial five-year operating forecast and is gradually decreased to the terminal value growth rate for the

remaining years under the cash flow approach

Key assumptions in the discounted cash flow approach include the discount rate and terminal growth rate The discount rate which is

specific to each reporting unit and is used to determine the present value of future debt-free net cash flow stream is blended rate

combining required rates of return on debt and equity instruments with comparable risk characteristics Using such blended rate

appropriately reflects the cost of the debt and equity investment forming the capital of an enterprise whereas the terminal growth rate

at the end of the discrete projection period is determined by using the Constant Growth Valuation Model The Constant Growth

Valuation Model is based on the assumption that the specific reporting unit will undergo steady long-term rate of growth in earnings

and that the investor purchasing the business has required rate of return he is willing to accept for his investment It assumes

continuing growth in cash flow per annum into perpetuity consistent with expected real annual growth rate of Gross Domestic

Product GDP plus inflation for the foreseeable future

While the Company has determined the estimated fair values of its reporting units to be appropriate based on the forecasted level of

revenue growth net income and cash flows in the current market environment it is reasonable possibility that one of our reporting

units may become impaired in future periods as there can be no assurance that the Companys estimates and assumptions made for

purposes of its goodwill impairment testing as of June 2010 will prove to be accurate predictions of the future Our use of the term

reasonable possibility refers to potential occurrence that is more than remote but less than probable in the Companys judgment If

the Companys assumptions including forecasted revenue growth rates are not achieved the Company may be required to record

goodwill impairment charges in future periods Potential events and/or changes in circumstances that could reasonably be expected to

negatively impact the key assumptions and affect the recovery of our goodwill include

The Company revenues are derived from frw major clients the loss of any of which could cause its results of

operations to be adversely affrcted large portion of the Companys revenues are drawn from various civilian and military

U.S governmental departments and agencies and local school districts The following factors could have material negative

impact on the Companys business
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seasonality of federal government and education related business makes future financial results less predictable and

because of its dependence on governments and local school districts demand for IT products material decline in

overall sales to the government as whole or to certain key agency thereof and/or the education sector could

have material adverse effect on its results of operations

The Companys success in increasing the portion of its revenues derived from IT services and consulting If the

Company is unsuccessful it future results may be adversely affected The Companys transition from an emphasis on IT

product sales to an emphasis on providing IT services and consulting has placed significant demands on its managerial

administrative and operational resources The Companys ability to manage this transition effectively is dependent upon its

ability to develop and improve operational financial and other internal systems as well as its business development

capabilities and to attract train retain motivate and manage our employees If the Company is unable to do so its ability to

effectively deliver and support its services may be adversely affected

The Companys inability to maintain high personnel-utilization rates may adversely impact its profit The most significant

cost relating to the services component of the Companys business is personnel expense which consists of salaries benefits

and payroll related expenses Thus the financial performance of the Companys service business is based primarily upon

billing margins billable hourly rates less the costs to us of service personnel on an hourly basis and utilization rates billable

hours divided by paid hours The future success of the services component of the Companys business will depend in large

part upon our ability to maintain high utilization rates at profitable billing margins

The Companys revenues and expenses are unpredictable decrease in revenues or increase in expenses could

materially adversely affect its operating results The Companys operating results have been and will continue to be

impacted by changes in technical personnel billing and utilization rates Moreover the Company expects that downward

pricing pressure will persist due to the continued commoditization of computer products Further there are numerous other

factors which are not within the Companys control that can contribute to fluctuations in our operating results including the

following

patterns of capital spending by clients

the timing size and mix of product and service orders and deliveries

the timing and size of new projects including projects for new clients and

changes in trends affecting the outsourcing of IT services

At August 31 2010 Emtecs market capitalization was greater than its total stockholders equity However the Companys stock does

not trade frequently and thus management believes the inherent value of the Company is not and has not been accurately reflected by

the current or historical stock market valuation of the Company Accordingly the Company continues to believe that the income and

market-based approaches are the most appropriate valuation methods

In accordance with ASC 350 the Company performed its annual impairment testing as of June 2010 with the assistance of an

external valuation firm Based on the its annual impairment testing the Company does not currently believe that there is an indication

of goodwill impairment at August 31 2010 However if current market conditions change and the Companys estimated values

under the income and/or market-based approaches is/are affected then it is possible that the Company could have to take goodwill

impairment charge against earnings in future period

Identifiable Intangible Assets

At August 31 2010 and 2009 the components of identifiable intangible assets are as follows in thousands

August 31 2010 August 31 2009

Customer relationships 15768 14098

Noncompete agreements 449 398

Software technology 14

Trademarks 169 169

Trade names 203

Foreign currency translation adjustment 52

16655 14665

Accumulated amortization 5128 3430
Foreign currency translation adjustment

Balance ending 11522 11235
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Customer relationships represent the fair value ascribed to customer relationships purchased in 2005 the acquisitions of Luceo and

eBAS/Aveeva in fiscal 2008 the acquisition of KOAN-IT in fiscal 2009 and the acquisition of SDI in June 2010 The amounts

ascribed to customer relationships are being amortized on straight-line basis over 5-15 years

Noncompete agreements represent the value ascribed to covenants not to compete in employment and acquisition agreements with

certain members of Luceo eBAS/Aveeva KOAN-IT and SDIs management entered into at the time of the respective

acquisitions The amounts ascribed to noncompete agreements are being amortized on straight-line basis over 3-5 years

Software technology represents the value ascribed to software developed by SARK which was acquired in fiscal 2010 The amounts

ascribed to software technology are being amortized on straight-line basis over years

Trademarks represent the value ascribed to trademarks owned by KOAN-IT The amount ascribed to trademarks is being amortized

on straight-line basis over years

Trade names represent the value ascribed to trade name owned by SDI The amount ascribed to trade name is being amortized on

straight-line basis over years

Amortization expense related to intangible assets was $1.7 million and $1.5 million for the year ended August 31 2010 and 2009

respectively We currently expect future amortization to be as follows in thousands

Years ending August 31

2011 1884

2012 1884

2013 1836

2014 1187

2015 1056

Long-lived assets including customer relationships and property and equipment are tested for recoverability whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable in accordance with FASB ASC 350 Intangibles-

Goodwill and Other and FASB ASC 360 Property Plant and Equipment Recoverability of long-lived assets is assessed by

comparison of the carrying amount to the estimated undiscounted future net cash flows expected to result from the use of the assets

and their eventual disposition If estimated undiscounted future net cash flows are less than the carrying amount the asset is

considered impaired and loss would be recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the

asset No impairment of long-lived assets occurred for the fiscal years ended August 31 2010 and 2009

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred Advertising expense was $1.0 million and $1.1 million for the years ended August 31

2010 and 2009 respectively Advertising expense is included in selling general and administrative expenses in the consolidated

statements of operations We receive marketing development funds from various manufacturers which are also included as

reduction in selling general and administrative expense

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC 740 Income Taxes The Company files federal

consolidated tax return that includes all U.S entities The Company also files several combinedlconsolidated state tax returns and

several separate state tax returns Deferred taxes are provided based upon review of the tax basis of assets and liabilities whereby

deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences Temporary differences are the differences between the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax basis Deferred tax assets are recognized for tax loss carryforwards Deferred

tax assets are reduced by valuation allowance when in the opinion of management it is more likely than not that some portion or all

of the deferred tax assets will not be realized Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and

rates on the date of enactment Deferred taxes result from timing differences primarily relating to bad debts inventory reserves

deferred revenue fixed asset depreciation compensation expenses and intangible asset amortization

In October 2008 the Company settled the August 2003 and April 2004 tax audits of Emtec Federal formerly known as Westwood

Computer Corporation Westwood with the Appeals Office of the IRS The settlement agreement resulted in an additional federal

income tax payment of $145000 which included interest of $41000 The Company has filed 2003 and 2004 amended New Jersey

income tax returns to pay additional New Jersey taxes that resulted from the IRS settlement The accounting to record the settlements

of these pre-merger tax liabilities under ASC 740 resulted in adjustments to goodwill and to deferred tax assets Since the Westwood

merger agreement included indemnification coverage by Westwoods former stockholders the Company recorded receivable Due

from the Westwood former stockholders of $631000 The $631000 included pre-merger tax liabilities totaling $361000 plus

associated professional fees to defend the Companys tax positions totaling $270000 The $361000 portion of the Companys

indemnity claim was recorded as reduction to goodwill acquired in the April 2004 Westwood merger The remaining $270000

portion was recorded as reduction to selling general and administrative expenses during the three months ended November 30

2008
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The Due from Westwood former stockholders receivable was satisfied during October 2008 based on offsetting amounts Due to

Westwood former stockholders totaling $631000 The amounts Due to Westwood former stockholders represented funds we held

as unclaimed merger consideration

We conduct business nationally and as result file income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction and various state and local

jurisdictions With few exceptions we are no longer subject to federal state or local income tax examinations for tax returns filed

for fiscal years 2005 and prior

Reconciliation of Liabilities for Unrecognized Tax Benefits for the years ended August 31 2010 and 2009 in thousands are as

follows

Balance at September 2009 and 2008 202 693

Unrecognized tax positions of prior periods

Increase

Decrease

Unrecognized tax positions of current year

Increase 10 56

Decrease

Decrease in Unrecognized tax benefits due to settlements 547

Decrease in Unrecognized tax benefits due to lapse of

statute of limitations

Balance at August 31 2010 and 2009 212 202

For the Years Ended August 31

2010 2009

Total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized

would affect the effective tax rate 96 90

Accrued interest and penalties for unrecognized tax benefits 100 78

Interest and penalties classified as income tax expense benefit 22 25

Foreign Currency Translation and Other Comprehensive Income

The financial statements of the Companys foreign subsidiaries are remeasured into U.S dollars for consolidation and reporting

purposes The functional currency for the Companys foreign operations is the local currency Current rates of exchange are used to

remeasure assets and liabilities Adjustments to translate those statements into U.S dollars are recorded in accumulated other

comprehensive income

The Companys comprehensive income is presented in the following table in thousands

Years Ended August 31
2010 2009

Net Income loss 513 1718

Cumulative translation adjustment net of taxes 16 173

Total comprehensive income loss 497 1891

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share amounts are computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders the numerator by the

weighted average shares outstanding the denominator during the period Shares issued during the period are weighted for the portion

of the period that they were outstanding

The computation of diluted earnings per share is similar to the computation of basic earnings per share except that the denominator is

increased to include the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive options restricted stock

awards and warrants had been exercised as of the end of the period Potentially dilutive shares consist of stock options restricted stock
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awards and warrants totaling 315314 and 215986 shares for the years ended August 31 2010 and 2009 respectively Diluted shares

for the year ended August 31 2010 were not included in the calculation of diluted net loss per share because the effect of the inclusion

would be anti-dilutive In addition outstanding warrants to purchase 1401733 and 1688354 common shares as of August 31 2010

and 2009 respectively were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the exercise price was greater than

the average market price of the Companys common shares over those periods

Stock-Based Employee Compensation

The Company has stock-based employee compensation plan which is more fully described in Note 11 Stock-Based Compensation

and Note 12 Warrants The Company follows FASB ASC 718 10 formerly SFAS No 123R Share-Based Payments to

account for stock options ASC 718 10 requires that the Company record compensation expense equal to the fair value of all equity-

based compensation over the vesting period of each award The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate

the fair value of stock-based awards

Common Stock with Put Options

FASB ASC 480 Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures in its balance

sheet certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity Financial instruments that are within the scope of

ASC 480 must be classified as liabilities because that obligation embodies an obligation of the issuer

Financial instruments within the scope of ASC 480 must represent an obligation on the part of the issuer An obligation is

conditional or unconditional duty or responsibility to transfer assets or to issue equity shares Some financial instruments represent

conditional obligation on the part of the issuer That is the issuer is not obligated to perform under the financial instrument unless and

until specified condition has been satisfied financial instrument that represents conditional obligation to transfer assets or issue

equity shares may be within the scope of ASC 480

Also to be within the scope of ASC 480 financial instrument is required to be freestanding freestanding financial instrument is

financial instrument that is entered into separately and apart from any of the entitys other financial instruments or equity

transactions or in conjunction with some other transaction and is legally detachable and separately exercisable

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets

In April 2008 FASB ASC 50-30 Intangible Goodwill and Other amended the factors to be considered in assumptions used to

determine the useful lives of recognized intangible assets recognized The new guidance applies to intangible assets with contractual

lives that are acquired individually or with group of assets as well as those assets acquired in business combination The new

guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008 and subsequent interim periods We adopted the statement on

September 2009 which is the beginning of our 2010 fiscal year The adoption of ASC 350-30 has not had significant impact on

our consolidated financial position or results of operations

Warrants

Effective as of September 2009 the Company adopted FASB ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedging relating to the recording and

disclosure of warrants This guidance applies to freestanding contracts that are indexed to and potentially in an entitys own

stock The Company calculates and records the fair value of the
liability

associated with warrants using an acceptable valuation model

Black-Scholes model at each reporting period In connection with the issuance of warrants and compliance with FASB ASC 815

the Company recorded liability on August 2010 of $916000 At August 31 2010 the net liability and net expense of $910000 is

recorded on the Balance Sheet and Consolidated Statement of Operations

Subsequent Events

In February 2010 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued amended guidance on subsequent events Under this

amended guidance SEC filers are no longer required to disclose the date through which subsequent events have been evaluated in

originally issued and revised financial statements This guidance was effective immediately and we adopted these new requirements

for the period ended February 28 2010

Accounts Receivable

In July 2010 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU 2010-20 Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing

Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses ASU 2010-20 requires more robust and disaggregated disclosures about the credit

quality of financing receivables and allowances for credit losses including disclosure about credit quality indicators past due

information and modifications of finance receivables The disclosures as of the end of reporting period are effective for interim and

annual reporting periods ending on and after December 15 2010 The disclosures about activity that occurs during reporting period
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are effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning on or after December 15 2010 The adoption of this guidance may

expand the existing disclosure requirements which the Company is currently evaluating

Revenue Recognition

In October 2009 the FASB issued ASU 2009-13 Revenue Recognition Topic 605 Multiple Deliverable Revenue Arrangements

which amends ASC 605 Revenue Recognition to permit companies to allocate revenue in multiple-element arrangements based on an

elements estimated selling price if vendor-specific or other third-party evidence of value is not available ASU 2009-13 is effective

prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15 2010 Earlier

application is permitted The adoption of this ASU is not expected to have material impact on the Companys financial position

results of operations or cash flows

In October 2009 the FASB issued ASU No 2009-14 Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software Elements ASU 2009-14

modifies the software revenue recognition guidance to exclude from its scope tangible products that contain both software and non-

software components that function together to deliver products essential functionality ASU 2009-14 is effective for revenue

arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15 2010 Early promotion is

permitted The adoption of this ASU is not expected to have material impact on the Companys financial position results of

operation or cash flows

Acquisitions

SARKInfotech Private Limited

On April 2010 Emtec India acquired certain selected assets of SARK The purchase price consisted of approximately $300000

cash at closing The Company accounted for the acquisition under the purchase method whereby amounts were assigned to assets

acquired based on their fair values on the date of the acquisition The excess purchase price over fair value of assets acquired was

recognized as goodwill

Unaudited pro forma condensed results of operations are not included in this report because the effect of the acquisition is not

material

Secure Data Inc

On June 2010 Emtec Federal wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of SDI for an

aggregate purchase price of approximately $2.9 million in cash and equity plus future earnout payments of $676000 The equity

included in the consideration above consisted of the fair value of the puttable restricted common stock as of June 2010 The

puttable feature embedded in the restricted common stock allows each former shareholders of SDI one-time election to put back

all of their restricted common stock to the Company at fixed price on the third anniversary of the acquisition date Management
calculated the fair value using Black-Scholes valuation model which included put input capability the quoted market price on the

date of grant term of three years interest-free rate at .17% and an exercise price of $4.00 per share In accordance with SEC

Accounting Series Release No 268 Presentation in Financial Statements of Redeemable Preferred Stocks the puttable stock is

subjected to equity accounting and is classified on the Companys balance sheet as temporary equity

In addition the Company may be required to pay additional variable cash and stock consideration each year for the next three years on

the anniversary of closing that is contingent upon the achievement of certain performance milestones The fair value of the contingent

consideration arrangement at the acquisition date was $676000 We estimated the fair value of the contingent consideration using

probability assessments of expected future cash flows over the period in which the obligation is expected to be settled and applied

discount rate that appropriately captures market participants view of the risk associated with the obligation This fair value is based

on significant inputs not observable in the market As of August 31 2010 there were no significant changes in the range of outcomes

for the contingent consideration

The Company applied FASB ASC 805 Business Combinations whereby amounts were assigned to assets acquired and liabilities

assumed based on their fair values on the date of the acquisition Management determined the fair value of SDIs net assets on June

2009 were $1.3 million which resulted in an excess purchase price over fair value of net assets acquired of $1.7 million which was

recognized as goodwill
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The allocation of purchase price by significant component is as follows in thousands

Cash 349

Trade receivables net 356

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 29

Due from former shareholders 365

Plant and equipment 436

Customer relationships 1670

Trade name 203

Noncompete asset 50

Accounts payable 116
Accrued expenses 298
Income taxes payable 281
Deferred tax liabilities 814
Eamout liabilities 676
Fair value of net assets acquired 1274

Purchase price 2939

Excess purchase price 1664

The Company allocated $1.7 million to client relationships at the acquisition date that is being amortized on straight-line method

over period of seven years The Company also allocated $50000 to noncompete asset that is being amortized on straight-line

method over period of three years
Trade name with an allocated value at the acquisition date of $203000 is deemed to have

useful life of five years

Enterprise Management Solutions Inc

On May 12 2009 KOAN-IT US acquired certain assets of EMS company under Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection in the Middle

District of Florida The purchase price for the assets consisted of $150000 cash at closing Additionally the Company capitalized

professional fees of $108000 that were associated with the acquisition ofthe assets of EMS The acquisition was funded through

borrowings under the Credit Facility with the Lender

The Company accounted for the acquisition under the purchase method whereby amounts were assigned to assets acquired based on

their fair values on the date of the acquisition Management determined the fair value of EMS assets on May 12 2009 were $6000

property and equipment which resulted in an excess purchase price over fair value of assets acquired of $252000 that was

recognized as goodwill

Unaudited pro forma condensed results of operations are not included in this report because the effect of the acquisition is not

material

KOAN-IT Corp

On February 12 2009 EIS Canada EIS-US KOAN-IT and the shareholders of KOAN-IT the Shareholders entered into Share

Purchase Agreement pursuant to which EIS-Canada acquired all of the outstanding stock of KOAN-IT from the Shareholders and

ii EIS- US acquired all of the outstanding stock of KOAN-IT US from KOAN-IT for an aggregate consideration of up to

approximately $3.3 million The purchase price consisted ofi cash at closing iiunsecured subordinated promissory notes issued to

each of the Shareholders and iii the potential right to receive additional cash consideration each year for the next three years on the

anniversary of the closing if certain performance goals are met In 2010 the Company paid the former shareholders of KOAN-IT

approximately $316000 for the achievement of certain performance goals by KOAN-IT for the first year following the closing

The Company accounted for the acquisition under the purchase method whereby amounts were assigned to assets acquired and

liabilities assumed based on their fair values on the date of the acquisition Management determined the fair value of KOAN-IT and

KOAN-IT US net assets on February 12 2009 were $1.1 million which resulted in an excess purchase price over fair value of net

assets acquired of $548000 which was recognized as goodwill

Unaudited pro forma condensed results of operations are not included in this report because the effect of the acquisition is not

material
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Trade Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

At August 31 2010 and 2009 trade receivables consisted of the following in thousands

August 31 August31

2010 2009

Trade receivables 36628 29767

Allowance for doubtful accounts 366 304
Trade receivables net 36262 29463

Trade receivables include $2.2 million and $1.5 million of unbilled revenue as of August 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Sales to one of the school districts in Georgia accounted for approximately $41.2 million or 18.4% and $44.2 million or 19.8% of the

Companys total revenues for years ended August 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Trade receivables due from school districts in Georgia and Florida and one of the departments of U.S Government accounted for

approximately 18.2% 0.5% and 1.7% respectively of the Companys trade receivables as of August 31 2010 The same clients

accounted for approximately 14.4% 17.8% and 10.7% respectively of the Companys trade receivable as of August 31 2009

An analysis of the allowance for doubtful accounts for years ended August 31 is as follows in thousands

2010 2009

Balance beginning of year 304 391

Provision for doubtful accounts 255 371

Charge-offs 193 458
Recoveries

Balance end of year 366 304

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market Inventories consist of finished goods purchased for resale including

computer hardware computer software computer peripherals and related supplies At August 31 2010 and 2009 inventories

consisted of the following in thousands

August 31 August31

2010 2009

Hardware software accessories and parts 1759 4638

Inventory reserve 244 228
Net inventories 1515 4410

At August 31 2010 net inventories decreased from August 31 2009 primarily due to timing of various computer roll-out projects for

various federal agencies

Property and Equipment

At August 31 2010 and 2009 property and equipment consisted of the following in thousands

Estimated Life

2010 2009 Years

Leasehold improvements 831 507 to

Computer equipment 2905 2128 to

Furniture and fixtures 362 212 to

Automobiles 133 119 to

Software 1232 965

5463 3931

Less accumulated depreciation 3252 2541

Property and Equipment Net 2211 1390

Depreciation expense was $716000 and $812000 for the years ended August 31 2010 and 2009 respectively
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Line of Credit

The Company Emtec NJ Emtec LLC Emtec Federal Emtec Global Luceo eBAS and Aveeva collectively the Borrower have

Loan and Security Agreement with De Lage Landen Financial Services Inc the Lender pursuant to which the Lender provides

the Borrower with revolving credit loan and floor plan loan the Credit Facility The Credit Facility provides for aggregate

borrowings of the lesser of $32.0 million or 85% of Borrowers eligible accounts receivable plus 100% of unsold inventory financed

by the Lender and 40% of all other unsold inventory The floor plan loan portion of the Credit Facility is for the purchase of inventory

from approved vendors and for other business purposes The Credit Facility subjects the Borrower to mandatory repayments upon the

occurrence of certain events as set forth in the Credit Facility

On December 2008 the Borrower entered into First Amendment and Joinder to Loan and Security Agreement and Schedule to

Loan and Security Agreement the First Amendment with the Lender pursuant to which the Lender extended the term of the loans

issued to the Borrower under the Loan and Security Agreement from December 2008 until December 2010 and made certain

other amendments to the Loan and Security Agreement including the following

The First Amendment changed the base rate of interest to the three month 90 day LIBOR rate from the previous base rate of

the Prime Rate

The First Amendment changed the interest rate for revolving credit loans to the base rate plus 3.25% from the previous interest

rate for revolving credit loans which was the base rate minus 0.5% and changed the interest rate for floorplan loans if

applicable to 6.25% in excess of the base rate from the previous interest rate for floorplan loans of 2.5% in excess of the base

rate

The First Amendment amended the Schedule to provide that the Borrower must pay the Lender floorplan annual volume

commitment fee if the aggregate amount of all floorplan loans does not equal or exceed $60.0 million in 12-month period from

December 1st through November 30th The floorplan commitment fee is equal to the amount that the floorplan usage during

such 12-month period is less than $60.0 million multiplied by 1% If the Borrower terminates the Credit Facility during 12-

month period the Borrower shall be required to pay the Lender prorated portion of the annual volume commitment fee For

the periods from December 2009 through August 31 2010 and for the periods from December 2008 and August 31 2009

the Companys floorplan volume was approximately $11.6 million and $17.0 million respectively The Company accrued

$334000 and $280000 in commitment fees as interest expense on the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended

August 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

The Company had balances of $16.0 million and $9.0 million outstanding under the revolving portion of the Credit Facility and

balances of $3.4 million and $5.4 million included in the Companys accounts payable outstanding plus $723000 and $321000 in

open approvals under the floor plan portion of the Credit Facility at August 31 2010 and 2009 respectively Net availability was $6.8

million and $11.9 million under the revolving portion of the Credit Facility and additionally $5.0 million and $5.4 million was

available under the floor plan portion of the Credit Facility as of August 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

As of August 31 2010 the Company determined that it was in compliance with its financial covenants under the Credit Facility

The Company is currently in the process of negotiating two year renewal of its Credit Facility with the Lender and anticipates the

renewal will be completed prior to December 2010 which is the expiration date of the existing Credit Facility

Long-Term Debt

At August 31 2010 and 2009 the Companys long-term debt consisted of the following in thousands

August 31 August 31

2010 2009

5% subordinated note payable to DARR Global Holdings Inc 345

8% subordinated note payable to Mr Siva Natarajan
410

6% subordinated note payable to Former Shareholders of KOAN-IT 458

Total debt 1213

Less current portion 1213

Long-term debt net of current portion
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Accrued Liabilities

At August 31 2010 and 2009 accrued liabilities consisted of the following in thousands

Accrued payroll

Accrued commissions

Accrued state sales taxes

Accrued third-party service fees

Other accrued expenses

August3l2010 August3l2009

4156 2559

389 586

84 74

181 72

3217 3432

8027 6723

10 Income Taxes

Income tax expense for the years ended August 31 2010 and 2009 consisted of the following in thousands

Income Tax Expense Benefit

Current expense

921

222 508

1143 1271

183

1326 1271

501 225

136 204

637 21

100 59
737 38

589 1233

reconciliation of the federal statutory provision to the provision for financial reporting purposes for the years ended August 31
2010 and 2009 is as follows in thousands

Statutory federal tax provision

State income taxes net of federal

FIN 48 accruallsettlements- net

Stock compensation tax benefit windfallshortfall

Prior year expense underaccrual/overaccrual

Warrant expense

Other permanent differences

Provision for income taxes

August 31 2010 August 31 2009

25 1004
66 172

20 40
18
25

309

31

42

162 108

589 1233

763Federal

State and other

Domestic-U.S

Foreign

Total Current Expense

Deferred expense benefit

Federal

State and other

Domestic-U.S

Foreign

Total Deferred Benefit Expense

Income Tax Expense
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2010 2009

Deferred tax assets

Trade receivables 92

Inventories
200

Accrued liabilities
216

Deferred Revenue 156

Property and equipment
19

Notes Payable- Officers
129

Stock OptionlRestricted Stock Plan 288 236

Loss Carryforwards other 427 475

1616 1504

Deferred tax liabilities

Property and equipment 103 63
Customer Relationships 3178 3098

Goodwill 89 20
3370 3181

Net Deferred tax liability 1754 1677

At August 31 2010 and 2009 the net deferred tax asset liability is reflected as follows in thousands

2010 2009

898 680

411 459

3063 2816

1754 1677

Our subsidiary Emtec Federal has state tax loss carryforwards approximating $5.2 million that expire in varying amounts after the

August 2014 fiscal year At August 31 2010 noncurrent deferred tax assets attributable to Emtec Federal state tax loss carryforwards

amounted to $270000

11 Stock-Based Compensation

Stock Options

An amendment to the Companys 2006 Stock-Based Incentive Compensation Plan the 2006 Plan was approved by the Companys

stockholders on February 2009 The 2006 Plan authorizes the granting of stock options to directors and eligible employees The

amendment increased the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock available under the 2006 Plan from 1400000 shares to

2543207 shares eligible for issuance at prices not less than 100% of the fair value of the Companys common stock on the date of

grant 110% in the case of stockholders owning more than 10% of the Companys common stock Options under the 2006 Plan have

terms from to 10 years Certain options vest immediately and others vest over term up to to years

The Company measures the fair value of options on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option valuation model The Company

estimated the expected volatility using the Companys historical stock price data over the expected term of the stock options The

Company also used historical exercise patterns and forfeiture behaviors to estimate the options expected term and our forfeiture

rate The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S Treasury zero-coupon yield curve in effect on the grant date Both expected

volatility and the risk-free interest rate are based on period that approximates the expected term

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions net of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at

August 31 2010 and 2009 are as follows in thousands

129

221

376

156

Deferred tax asset-current

Deferred tax asset- long term

Deferred tax liablility

Net deferred tax liabilites
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summaiy of stock options for the year ended August 31 2010 is as follows

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price

Weighted

Average

Remaining

Term

Represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value based on the Companys average closing stock prices for the year ended August

31 2010

There were 75833 and 45000 stock options issued during the years ended August 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The following

assumptions were used to value stock options issued during each of the years August 31 2010 and 2009

Weighted-Average Fair Value

Assumptions

Expected Volatility

Expected Term

Expected Forfeiture Rate

Dividend Yield

Risk-Free Interest Rate

0.84 0.45

87.86% 88.07%

6.5 years

0%
0% 0%

2.01% 2.09% 1.89% 2.36%

Non-Vested Stock Restricted Stock

The following table summarizes the Companys restricted stock activity during the year ended August 31 2010

461826

$1.06 992844b

The fair value of vested restricted stock shares represents the total pre-tax fair value based on the closing stock price

on the day of vesting which would have been received by holders of restricted stock shares had all such holders sold

their underlying shares on that date

The aggregate fair value of the non-vested restricted stock shares expected to vest represents the total pre-tax fair value
based on the Companys closing stock price as of August 31 2010 which would have been received by holders of

restricted stock shares had all such holders sold their underlying shares on that date

The Company recognizes compensation expense associated with the issuance of such shares using the closing price of the Companys
common stock on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board on the date of grant over the vesting period on straight-line basis

Stock Options and Non-vested Stock

Stock-based compensation costs related to the 2006 Plan totaled $561000 and $162000 during the fiscal years ended 2010 and 2009

respectively As of August 31 2010 the Company had $546000 of unrecognized compensation cost related to the 2006 Plan The

unrecognized compensation cost is expected to be recognized over remaining period of years

Aggregate

Intrinsic

ValueFor the Year Ended August 31 2010 Shares

Options Outstanding -September 2009 359500 $1.15

Options Granted 75833 $1.12

Options Exercised

Options Forfeited or Expired 22000 $1.31

Options Outstanding August 31 2010 5.71 years $46885

413333 $1.13

Options Exercisable August 31 2010 339083 5.84 years 46885

$1.13

2010 2009

106% 129%

years

0%

Weighted

For the Year Ended August 31 2010

Nonvested September 2009

Granted

Vested

Shares

565859

749841

444784

Average

Grant Date Fair

Value Fair Value

$0.72

$1.10

$0.71

Forfeited

Nonvested August 31 2010 870916
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12 Warrants

On August 2005 the Company issued certain stockholders stock warrants that evidence the obligation of the Company to issue

variable number of shares in the aggregate equal to 10% of the total issued and outstanding shares of the Companys common stock

measured on post-exercise basis at any
date during the 5-year term of the warrants which ended on August 2010 The aggregate

exercise price of these warrants was fixed at $3.7 million The exercise price per warrant varied based upon the number of shares

issuable under the warrants The number of shares issuable under the warrants totaled 1791103 and 1688354 shares with an

exercise price of $2.06 and $2.19 per share as of August 2010 and August 31 2009 respectively The outstanding warrants were

anti-dilutive for the year
ended August 2009 because the exercise price was greater than the average market price of the

Companys common shares On August 2010 the Company entered into letter agreement with DARR Westwood LLC whereby

its existing warrant to purchase 8% of the outstanding Common Stock on fully diluted basis was exchanged for warrant to purchase

up to an aggregate of 1401733 shares of common stock of the Company at an exercise price of $2.11 per share The existing

warrant was then immediately cancelled and the remainder of the previously outstanding stock warrants expired by their terms on

August 2010

Effective as of September 2009 the Company adopted FASB ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedging relating to the recording and

disclosure of warrants The guidance applies to freestanding contracts that are indexed to and potentially in an entitys own stock

The adoption of these standards related to the above mentioned warrants was not recorded in the financial statements because the

Company determined that the impact was not material at the adoption date as of September 2009 and subsequent reporting periods

through expiration at August 2010

On August 2010 the Company entered into letter agreement the Letter Agreement with DARR Westwood LLC the

Investor pursuant to which among other things the Investor agreed to certain transfer restrictions on shares of Common

Stock owned by the Investor which are described below and ii to transfer to the Company for cancellation the existing warrant

owned by the Investor to purchase 8% of the outstanding Common Stock on fully diluted basis and the Company issued to the

Investor warrant the Warrant to purchase up to an aggregate of 1401733 shares of common stock par value $.01 per share of

the Company Common Stock at an exercise price of $2.11 per share The Investors sole member is Dinesh Desai the

Companys Chairman Chief Executive Officer and President

Under the terms of the Letter Agreement the Investor is prohibited during the specified restricted period from transferring or publicly

announcing any intention to transfer in either case without the unanimous approval of the disinterested members of the Companys

board of directors all or any portion of the Warrant or the Investors rights under the Warrant or any shares of Common Stock

currently or in the future owned by the Investor However this prohibition does not apply to any transfer of shares of Common Stock

pursuant to which both the transferee is an independent third party and the price paid by the transferee is equal to or greater

than $5.00 per
share in cash The restricted period specified in the Letter Agreement commenced on August 2010 and terminates on

the earlier to occur of August 2015 or the date on which both the average of the daily volume weighted average price per

share of Common Stock over the immediately preceding 45 trading days that at least one share of Common Stock was traded is $5.00

or more and ii the average daily trading volume of shares of Common Stock over the 45 consecutive trading days regardless of

whether any shares of Common Stock were traded on any such trading day immediately preceding such date is 10000 or more

The Letter Agreement also requires that if the Company causes its Common Stock to become listed on national securities exchange

the Company will also list and maintain the listing of the shares of Common Stock underlying the Warrant on such national securities

exchange In addition subject to certain conditions the Company is required under the Letter Agreement to provide prior notice to the

Investor if at any time before the Warrant has been exercised in full the Company effects certain specified corporate actions

including selecting record date for dividends or distributions or effecting reorganization reclassification merger consolidation

sale transfer disposition dissolution liquidation or winding up involving the Company

The Warrant entitles the Investor to purchase 1401733 shares of Common Stock at $2.11 per share and expires on August 2015

The Warrant also contains provisions for cashless exercise and weighted average anti-dilution protection for subsequent issuances or

deemed issuances of Common Stock by the Company for consideration per share less than the per share exercise price of the Warrant

in effect immediately prior to such issuance or deemed issuance In connection with this issuance of warrants and compliance with

FASB ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedging the Company recorded liability on August 22010 of $916000 At August 31 2010 the

net liability
and net expense of $910000 is recorded on the balance sheet and consolidated statement of operation

13 Retirement Plan

The Company maintains Employees 401k Investment Plans the Plans which are savings and investment plans intended to be

qualified under Section 401 of the IRS The Plans cover the majority of the employees of the Company The Company makes

contributions to certain plans based on participants contribution The Companys 401k match expense totaled $203000 and

$167000 for the years
ended August 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The expense is included in cost of sales and selling general

and administrative expenses
in the consolidated statements of operations
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14 Related Party Transactions

The Company leases warehouse and office space from related parties The aggregate expense for these lease arrangements for the

years ended August 31 2010 and 2009 was $692000 and $611000 respectively

Management believes the lease payments are at or below market rate for similar facilities for the leases noted above

15 Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases its operating facilities certain sales offices and transportation equipment under non-cancelable operating lease

agreements that expire on various dates through August 31 2015 Rent expense was $1.5 million and $1.4 million for the years

ending August 31 2010 and 2009 respectively and is recorded in general and administrative expenses on the consolidated statements

of operations

The following are our contractual obligations associated with lease commitments We lease warehouse and office facilities vehicles

and certain office equipment under non-cancelable operating leases Future minimum lease payments under such leases are as follows

in thousands

Years ending August 31

2011 1709

2012 1215

2013 1169

2014 1129

2015 489

Total 5711

The Company is occasionally involved in various lawsuits claims and administrative proceedings arising in the normal course of

business The Company believes that any liability or loss associated with such matters individually or in the aggregate will not have

material adverse effect on the Companys financial condition or results of operations

On March 16 2005 the Company sold its 5.49% working interest in the Roosevelt Hot Springs geothermal unit to Energy Minerals

Inc buyer As part of the transaction the buyer assumed the remaining liability under the geothermal steam purchase agreement
with Pacificorp d/b/a Utah Power Light Company Under the 30-year agreement executed in 1993 $1.0 million prepayment was

received by the Company from Pacificorp The agreement gives Pacificorp the right to recover pro-rata portion of their original $1.0

million pre-payment should the geothermal unit fail to produce steam at levels specified under the agreement The Company recorded

the pre-payment as deferred revenue and was amortizing the amount as earned revenue over the 30-year term of the steam purchase

agreement Energy Minerals Inc has been assigned rights to the steam purchase agreement with Pacificorp and assumed the

remaining $672000 deferred revenue liability as of March 16 2005 However should the geothermal unit fail to produce steam at

levels specified under the agreement during the remaining 30-year term of the agreement PacifiCorp could potentially make claim

against the Company as former owner if the current ownership of the geothermal unit failed to satisfy Pacificorps claims The

Company believes that the probability of this occurrence is remote due to the production and operating history of the geothermal unit

In October 2010 the Company learned that it had been named as defendant in qui tam case alleging violations of the Trade

Agreements Act This case designated United States ex rel Folliard Synnex Corporation et al was filed under seal in the United

States District Court for the District of Columbia Qui tam lawsuits typically remain under seal hence usually unknown to the

defendant for some time while the government decides whether or not to intervene on behalf of private qui tam plaintiff known as

relator and take the lead in the litigation These lawsuits can involve significant monetary damages and penalties and award

bounties to private plaintiffs who successfully bring the suits The United States declined to intervene in the matter on May 27 2010

Nonetheless the Company can provide no assurance that the government will not intervene in this case in the future or in any other

qui tam suit against the Company in the future The Company expects to file motion to dismiss the lawsuit At this time the

Company is unable to predict the timing and outcome of this matter

16 Segment Information

The Company provides segment financial information in accordance with ASC 280 Segment Reporting The Companys business

activities are divided into two business segments EIS and EGS EIS consists of the Systems Division which includes Emtec NJ
Emtec LLC Emtec Federal and the business service management solutions offered by the ITSM practice EGS is the Companys

enterprise applications services solutions and training business including its ERP and Application Development practice and its

Business Analysis and Quality Assurance Practice and its Software Development practice The accounting policies of our segments

are the same as those described in Note and there are no material intersegment transactions
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Summarized financial information relating to the Companys operating segments is as follows in thousands

August 31 August 31

2010 2009

Identifiable Assets

EIS 61501 51586

EGS 12771 13687

Total Assets 74272 65273

For the Years Ended August 31
2010 2009

Revenues

EIS 194474 187351

EGS 30128 36492

Total Revenue 224602 223843

Gross Profit

EIS 30585 26341

EGS 5210 6555

Gross Profit 35795 32896

Depreciation and amortization

EIS 1543 1445

EGS 862 875

Depreciation and amortization 2405 2320

Operating Income Qss1

EIS 2254 3701

EGS 1236 381

Operating Income loss 1018 4082

Interest and Other Expense

Income
EIS 721 766

EGS 221 365

Interest and Other Expense

Income 942 1131

Provision for Income Taxes

EIS 1033 1282

EGS 444 49
Provision for Income Taxes 589 1233

Net Income loss

EIS 500 1653

EGS 1013 65

Net Income loss 513 1718

Capital expenditures

EIS 902 926

EGS 193 85

Capital expenditures 1094 1011
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Our management carried out an evaluation with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the

effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-l5e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended the Exchange Act as of August 31 201 Based upon that evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of August 31 2010 including the accumulation and communication

of disclosures to the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions

regarding required disclosure are effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in the

reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods

specified by the SECs rules and forms

There has not been any change in our internal control over financial reporting in connection with the evaluation required by Rule 13a-

15d under the Exchange Act that occurred during the quarter ended August 31 2010 that has materially affected or is reasonably

likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Companys registered public accounting firm regarding internal control

over financial reporting Managements report was not subject to attestation by the Companys registered public accounting firm

pursuant to rules of the SEC that permit the Company to provide only managements report in this annual report

Reports of Manacement

Managements Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Companys management in conformity with generally

accepted accounting principles to reflect the financial position of the Company and its operating results The financial information

appearing throughout this Annual Report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements Management is responsible for the

information and representations in such consolidated financial statements including the estimates and judgments required for their

preparation The consolidated financial statements have been audited by McGladrey Pullen LLP an independent registered public

accounting firm as stated in their report which appears herein

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors which is composed entirely of directors who are not officers or employees of the

Company meets regularly with management and the independent registered public accounting firm The independent registered public

accounting firm has had and continues to have direct access to the Audit Committee without the presence of other management

personnel and have been directed to discuss the results of their audit work and any matters they believe should be brought to the

Committees attention The independent registered public accounting firm reports directly to the Audit Committee

The Companys management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting

Internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

in the United States of America The Companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions

of the assets of the Company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being

made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

Companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

controls system no matter how well designed and operated cannot provide absolute assurance that the objectives of the controls

system are met and no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all controls issues and instances of fraud if any

within company can be detected Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures

may deteriorate

The Companys management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of August 31

2010 In making this assessment management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO in Internal Control Integrated Framework Based on this assessment using those criteria

management concluded that the Companys internal control over financial reporting was effective as of August 31 2010 to provide
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reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S

generally accepted accounting principles

Managements assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting did not include the

internal controls of SARK which was acquired in April 2010 nor the internal controls of SDI which was acquired in June 2010 The

acquisitions of SARK and SDI are included in the consolidated financial statements of Emtec Inc and represented total assets of

$479000 and $5.8 million respectively as of August 31 2010 In accordance with SEC guidance regarding the reporting of internal

control over financial reporting in connection with an acquisition management may omit an assessment of an acquired business

internal control over financial reporting from managements assessment of internal control over financial reporting for period not to

exceed one year

Pursuant to Regulation S-K Item 308b managements assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting

as of August 31 2010 has not been attested to by McGladrey Pullen LLP the independent registered public accounting firm that

audited the Companys consolidated financial statements for the year ended August 31 2010 as stated in their report which is included

herein

Item 9R Other Information

Not Applicable
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information appearing in the Companys Notice of Armual Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement for the 2011 annual meeting
of stockholders the 2011 Proxy Statement including information under Election of Directors and Section 16a Beneficial

Ownership Reporting Compliance is incorporated herein by reference The Company will file the 2011 Proxy Statement with the

Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close of the fiscal year

The Company adopted Code of Ethics in July 2004 as amended in August 2009 applicable to all of its employees including its

Principal Executive Officer Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer as well as the members of its Board The

Code of Ethics seeks to ensure compliance with all applicable laws and to maintain the highest standards of ethical conduct The

Code of Ethics sets out basic principles and methodology to help guide all of our officers directors and employees in the attainment of

this common goal

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth certain information as to each of our executive officers

Name Age Positions and Officers Presently Held

Dinesh Desai 61 Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer and President

Gregory Chandler 43 Chief Financial Officer and President Emtec Global Services

Sunil Misra 51 Chief Strategy Delivery Officer

Brian Mandel 53 Executive Vice President Sales

Ronald Seitz 63 Executive Vice President Client Services Education

Stephen Donnelly 52 Executive Vice President Business Planning and Analysis Human

Resources and Corporate Development

Sam Bhatt 43 Vice President of Finance and Secretary

Dinesh Desai Since August 2005 Mr Desai has been Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer and President of the

Company Prior to August 2005 and from 1986 Mr Desai has been the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive

Officer of DARR Global Holdings Inc management consulting firm Since 2004 he has served as Chairman of the Board of

Directors of two private corporations Westwood Computer Corporation and DARR Westwood Technology Corporation Mr Desai

was President Chief Executive Officer Co-Chairman of the Board of Directors and an owner of privately-held manufacturer

Western Sky Industries Western Sky of highly engineered proprietary component parts used primarily in aerospace applications

Prior to 1986 Mr Desai spent twelve years with American Can and Arco Chemical in various management positions including

marketing manufacturing finance planning and research and development Mr Desai has also served as member of the Board of

Directors of the Enterprise Center Nonprofit Organization Mr Desai holds Bachelor of Science Degree in chemical engineering

from the Indian Institute of Technology in Bombay India and Masters of Science Degree in both chemical and industrial

engineering from Montana State University He earned Masters in Business Administration from Temple University in 1978

Gregory Chandler Since April 2009 Mr Chandler has been Chief Financial Officer of the Company and President of the

Companys Global Services division Prior to April 2009 and from Febrnaiy 1999 Mr Chandler served as the Managing Director and

Group Head of Janney Montgomery Scott LLCs Business Services Investment Banking Practice Prior to Febrnary 1999 and from

August 1995 Mr Chandler was consultant at PricewaterhouseCoopers advising companies in restrncturing their back office

financial operations Mr Chandler received his MBA from Harvard Business School B.S in Engineering from the United States

Military Academy at West Point and is also Certified Public Accountant

Sunil Misra Since October 2009 Mr Misra has been Chief Strategy Delivery Officer for the Company Prior to October 2009 and

from January 2009 Mr Misra was the CEO of two boutique strategy consulting firms Verto Partners LLC and RJN International

LLC providing technology advisory services and assisting large IT outsourcing firm in the divestment of non-core business

unit Prior to January 2009 and from August 2006 Mr Misra was Vice President at Getronics NA IT Outsourcing and Systems

Integration subsidiary of KPN European telecom provider Getronics NA was acquired by CompuCom in August 2008 Prior to

August 2006 and from 1988 Mr Misra has held number of senior executive roles with global responsibilities at Unisys Corporation

Earlier in his career Mr Misra was with Credit Suisse First Boston and with Skantek Corporation Mr Misra received his bachelors

and masters degree in Electrical Engineering from Indian Institute of Technology lIT Delhi India and Rensselaer Polytechnic

Institute in New York respectively

Brian Mandet Since March 2010 Mr Mandel has been Executive Vice President Sales Prior to joining Emtec Mr Mandel was

Executive Vice President of Public Sector for Keane Inc systems integration and consulting company Prior to Keane Mr Mandel

worked at Unisys Corporation where he served clients in the public sector in variety of roles culminating with his position as Vice

President and Managing Partner within Public Sector Over the entire duration of his 13 year tenure at Unisys he held various

positions within the consulting services business including program leadership geographic leadership and operational leadership Mr
Mandel graduated from Temple University with bachelors degree in Business Administration and received an MBA from Villanova

University both conferred with high honors
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Ronald Seitz Since August 2010 Mr Seitz has been Executive Vice President Client Services Education Between March 2006

and August 2010 Mr Seitz had been President of Emtec Systems Between August 2005 and March 2006 Mr Seitz was President

of Emtec Southeast Operations Prior to August 2005 he was our President and Chief Operating Officer since February 2003 and

Executive Vice-President and Director since January 17 2001 and Executive Vice President of Emtec-NJ since March 1996 Prior

to March 1996 he was the Chief Operating Officer of Emtec-NJ He has been Director of Emtec-NJ since April 1995 Mr Seitz was

the founder in 1980 of Charleston South Carolina-based Computer Source Inc CSI CSI primarily provided microcomputer

systems network integration and data communications to mid-size and Fortune 1000 corporations In April 1995 CSI merged with

Landress Information Systems of Mt Laurel New Jersey to become Emtec-NJ Prior to founding CSI Mr Seitz was employed for six

years as an engineer with the U.S government in Washington DC He graduated from North Carolina State University with

Bachelor of Science degree and from George Washington University with an MBA in computer science Mr Seitz also holds DMD

degree from the Dental School at the Medical University of South Carolina

Stephen Donnelly Since May of 2009 Mr Donnelly has been Executive Vice President Business Planning and Analysis Human

Resources and Corporate Development Prior to April 2009 and from August 2005 Mr Donnelly served as the Companys Chief

Financial Officer Prior to August 2005 Mr Donnelly was the Chief Financial Officer of DARR Global Holdings Inc management

consulting firm He has served as an officer for Westwood Computer Corporation since 2004 Prior positions include Manager and

Managing Director for Acquisition Management Services Inc Director of Operations for privately-held human resource and

employee benefits software developer and Financial Manager for healthcare organization Mr Donnelly began his career with the

accounting firm of PriceWaterhouse He is Certified Public Accountant with Bachelors degree in Accounting from Villanova

University

Sam Bhatt Since August 2005 Mr Bhatt has been Vice President of Finance and Secretary Prior to August 2005 he was our

Vice President of Finance and Treasurer of Emtec since January 17 2001 and of Emtec-NJ since July 2000 Prior to that and from

July 1997 he was Director of Accounting for Emtec-NJ He also held the positions at Emtec-NJ of Accounting Manager from 1994

to July 1997 and of Senior Accountant from 1992 to 1994 Mr Bhatt holds Bachelor of Science Degree in business

administration from Drexel University in Pennsylvania and Diploma in Hotel Management from the Institute of Hotel Management

and Catering Technology in Mumbai India

Item 11 Executive Compensation

Information contained in the 2011 Proxy Statement including information appearing under Executive Compensation in the 2011

Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference

58



Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Information contained in the 2011 Proxy Statement including information appearing under Stock Ownership in the 2011 Proxy

Statement is incorporated herein by reference

The following table sets forth the information regarding equity compensation pians as of August 31 2010

Eciuitv Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities remaining

Number of securities to be available for future issuance

issued upon exercise of Weighted-average exercise under equity compensation

outstanding options warrants price of outstanding options plans excluding securities

Plan category and rights warrants and rights reflected in columna

Equity compensation plans

approved by security holders 1972978 $1.13 570229

Equity compensation plans not
-- -- --

approved by security holders

Total 1972978 $1.13 570229

An amendment to the Companys 2006 Stock-Based Incentive Compensation Plan the 2006 Plan was approved by

the stockholders on February 2009 The 2006 Plan authorizes the granting of stock options to directors and eligible employees The

amendment increased the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock available under the 2006 Plan from 1400000 shares to

2543207 shares eligible for issuance at prices not less than 100% of the fair value of the Companys common stock on the date of

grant 110% in the case of stockholders owning more than 10% of the Companys common stock Options under the 2006 Plan have

terms from to 10 years and certain options vest immediately and others through term up to years

Item 13 Certain Relationships Related Transactions and Director Independence

Information contained in the 2011 Proxy Statement including information appearing under Certain Relationships and Related

Transactions and Corporate Governance in the 2011 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference

Item 14 Principal Accountants Fees and Services

Information contained in the 2011 Proxy Statement including information appearing under Ratification of Independent Public

Accountants in the 2011 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements

Documents filed as part of this report include the financial statements appearing in Item Consolidated Balance Sheet

Consolidated Statements of Operations Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statements of

Stockholders Equity

Financial Statement Schedules

None

Exhibits

Exhibit

No Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization dated as of December 14 2000 between Registrant then known as

American Geological Enterprises Inc and Emtec Inc.1

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of March 15 2004 by and among DARR Westwood Technology Corporation

DARR Westwood Acquisition Corporation the Shareholders of Westwood Computer Corporation Named Westwood

Computer Corporation and Keith Grabel as Shareholders Agent.7

2.3 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of July 14 2005 by and among the Registrant Emtec Viasub LLC and Dan

Westwood Technology Corporation.5

2.4 Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Emtec Global Services LLC Luceo Inc and Siva Natarajan dated March 20

2008 11

2.5 Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Emtec Global Services LLC Aveeva Inc eBusiness Application Solutions and

Jessica Chopra dated August 13 2008 13

2.6 Exhibit Earnout to Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Emtec Global Services LLC Aveeva Inc eBusirtess

Application Solutions and Jessica Chopra dated August 13 2008 14

2.7 Share Purchase Agreement dated February 12 2009 by and among 7119747 Canada Inc Emtec Infrastructure Services

Corporation KOAN-IT Corp and the Shareholders of KOAN-IT Corp 16

2.8 Stock Purchase Agreement dated June 2010 by and among Emtec Federal Inc Secure Data Inc and the stockholders of

Secure Data Inc

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation as amended.2

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws.23

4.1 Certificate evidencing shares of common stock.2

10.1 Lease Agreement dated April 21 2003 between V-Sullyfield Properties II LLC and Westwood Computer Corporation for

Chantilly Virginia facility.7

10.2 Lease Agreement dated July 2003 between Westwood Property Holdings LLC and Westwood Computer Corporation for

Springfield New Jersey facility.7

10.3 Amendment to Lease Agreement dated July 14 2003 between V-Sullyfield Properties II LLC and Westwood Computer

Corporation for Chantilly Virginia facility.7

10.4 First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated April 16 2004 between Westwood Property Holdings LLC and Westwood

Computer Corporation for Springfield New Jersey facility.7

10.5 Lease Agreement dated September 2004 between Registrant and GST Properties LLC for Suwanee Georgia

facility.4
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10.6 2006 Stock Based Incentive Compensation Plan

10.7 Form of Guaranty issued by Registrant in favor of Four Kings Management LLC Keith Grabel Mary Margaret Grabel and

Darr Westwood LLC dated September 2005.7

10.8 Common Stock Purchase Warrant between Registrant and DARR Westwood LLC dated August 2005.6

10.9 Common Stock Purchase Warrant between Registrant and Margaret Grabel dated August 20055

10.10 Loan and Security Agreement dated December 2006 by and between De Lage Landen Financial Services Inc the

Registrant and its subsidiaries.8

10.11 Schedule to Loan and Security Agreement dated December 2006 by and between De Lage Landen Financial Services

Inc the Registrant and its subsidiaries.8

10.12 Subordinated Promissory Note dated February 2007 issued by Westwood Computer Corporation in favor of DARR Global

Holdings Inc

10.13 Form of Guaranty issued by Emtec Inc in favor of Keith Grabel Mary Margaret Grabel and DARR Global Holdings Inc

dated February 2007

10.14 Employment Agreement dated March 20 2008 by and between Luceo Inc and Siva Natarajan 10

10.15 8% Unsecured Promissory Note in the amount of $820000 dated March 20 2008 issued by Emtec Global Services LLC in

favor ofSivaNatarajan.1l

10.16 Employment Agreement dated August 13 2008 by and between eBusiness Application Solutions Inc and Jessica Chopra

12

10.17 Lease Agreement dated March 2006 between Luceo Inc and SM Brell II L.P for office space in Naperville Illinois 13

10.18 First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated April 2008 between Luceo Inc and SM Brell II L.P for office space in

Naperville Illinois 13

10.19 Commercial Lease Agreement dated July 2007 between Aveeva Inc and Ajay Chopra for office space in Fremont

California.l3

10.20 First Amendment to Commercial Lease Agreement dated August 13 2008 between Aveeva Inc and Ajay Chopra for

office space in Fremont California 13

10.21 Commercial Lease Agreement dated July 2007 between eBusiness Application Solutions Inc and Ajay Chopra for

office space in Fremont California 13

10.22 First Amendment to Commercial Lease Agreement dated August 13 2008 between eBusiness Applications Solutions Inc

and Ajay Chopra for office space in Fremont California 13

10.23 Emtec Global Services LLC Incentive Bonus Plan dated August 13 2008 for employees of eBusiness Applications Inc

Aveeva Inc and Aviance Software Inc 13

10.24 First Lease Amendment dated June 2008 between Emtec Inc and GST Properties LLC for office space in Suwanee

Georgia 13

10.25 Revocable License dated February 20 2008 between Emtec Federal Inc and A.M Property Holding Corp for office space
in New York New York 13

10.26 First Amendment and Joinder to Loan and Security Agreement and Schedule to Loan and Security Agreement dated

December 2008.14

10.27 Employment Agreement dated February 25 2009 between Emtec Inc and Ronald Seitz 16

10.28 Employment Agreement dated April 30 2009 between Emtec Inc and Gregory Chandler.l8

10.29 Amendment to the 2006 Stock Based Incentive Compensation Plan dated February 2009 19

10.30 Employment Agreement dated September 21 2009 between Emtec Inc and Stephen Donnelly 21
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10.31 Employment Agreement dated November 2009 between Emtec Inc and Sunil Misra.21

10.32 Offer to Lease dated March 2007 between KOAN-IT Corp and Sanrock Holdings Inc for office space in Ottawa

Canada.1

10.33 Lease Agreement dated February 2009 between Emtec Inc and Windsor at Interstate South LLC for office space in

Jacksonville Florida.19

10.34 Revocable License dated March 26 2009 between Emtec Inc and A.M Property Holding Corp for office space in New

York New York.19

10.35 Second Amendment to Lease Agreement dated March 20 2009 between Luceo Inc and SM Brell II L.P for office space

in Naperville Illinois.19

10.36 Third Amendment to Lease Agreement dated May 29 2009 between Luceo Inc and SM Brell II L.P for office space in

Naperville Illinois.19

10.37 Fourth Amendment to Lease Agreement dated June 11 2009 between Luceo Inc and SM Brell II L.P for office space in

Naperville Illinois.19

10.38 Employment Agreement dated December 2009 between Emtec mc and Samir Bhatt.20

10.39 Second Amendment to Lease dated December 2009 between Westwood Property Holdings LLC and Emtec Federal Inc

for Springfield New Jersey facility 20

10.40 Employment Agreement dated March 2010 between Emtec Inc and Brian Mandel.21

10.41 Second Lease Amendment dated December 2009 by and between GST Properties LLC Emtec Inc and Southprop

Inc for office space in Suwanee Georgia 21

10.42 Lease dated March 2010 between Radnor Center Associates and Emtec Inc for office space in Radnor Pennsylvania

21

10.43 Employment Agreement dated June 2010 between Emtec Federal Inc and Ray Kelly

10.44 Employment Agreement dated June 2010 between Emtec Federal Inc and Matt Swanson

10.45 Employment Agreement dated June 2010 between Emtec Federal Inc and Aaron Broyles

10.46 Employment Agreement dated June 2010 between Emtec Federal Inc and Lonnie McMinn

10.47 Letter Agreement dated August 2010 between Emtec Inc and DARR Westwood LLC.23

10.48 Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated August 2010 issued by Emtec Inc to DARR Westwood LLC 23

10.49 First Amendment to Employment Agreement dated August 19 2010 between Emtec Inc and Ronald Seitz.24

10.50 Lease dated August 20 2010 between Brandywine Operating Partnership L.P Alliant Techsystems Inc and Emtec

Federal Inc for office space in Herndon Virginia

10.51 Lease dated June 2006 between Corporate Centre II L.L.C and Secure Data Inc for office space in Fairview Heights

Illinois

10.52 Lease dated January 2010 between KVD Enterprises LLC and Secure Data Inc for office space in OFallon Illinois

10.53 Lease dated March 2010 between ABK LLC and Secure Data Inc for office space in OFallon Illinois

99.1 Employment Agreement dated February 12 2009 between KOAN-IT Corp and Peter Pranschke 15

99.2 Employment Agreement dated February 12 2009 between KOAN-IT Corp and Kim Orava.15

99.3 Employment Agreement dated February 12 2009 between KOAN-IT Corp and Tim Stratton.15

99.4 Employment Agreement dated February 12 2009 between KOAN-IT Corp and Dominique Roberge.15

62



14.1 Code of Ethics.19

21.1 List of Subsidiaries.17

23.1 Consent of Registered Public Accounting Firm

31.1 Certification of Dinesh Desai Principal Executive Officer of Registrant dated November 24 2010 Rule 3a-14a/1

14a

31.2 Certification of Greg Chandler Principal Financial Officer of Registrant dated November 24 2010 Rule 13a-14a/1

14a

32.1 Certificate of Dinesh Desai Principal Executive Officer of Registrant dated November 24 2010 Section 1350

32.2 Certificate of Greg Chandler Principal Financial Officer of Registrant dated November 24 2010 Section 1350

Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 17 2001 filed on January 31
2001 and incorporated herein by reference

Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on May 21 2001 and incorporated

herein by reference

Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Form 10-K dated March 31 2005 filed on July 14 2005 and incorporated

herein by reference

Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 14 2005 filed on July 20 2005 and

incorporated herein by reference

Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Tender Offer Statement on Form SC TO-I filed September 2005 and

incorporated herein by reference

Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Form 10-K dated August 31 2005 filed on December 14 2005 and

incorporated herein by reference

Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule l4A filed on April 20 2006 and

incorporated herein by reference

Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 2006 filed on December 13

2006 and incorporated herein by reference

Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q dated February 28 2007 filed on April 23
2007 and incorporated herein by reference

10 Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Form 8-K dated March 20 2008 filed on March 26 2008 and incorporated

herein by reference

11 Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Form 10-Q dated May 31 2008 filed on July 14 2008 and incorporated herein

by reference

12 Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Form 8-K dated August 13 2008 filed August 19 2008 and incorporated

herein by reference

13 Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Form 10-K dated August 31 2008 filed December 2008 and incorporated

herein by reference

14 Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Form 8-K dated December 2008 filed December 11 2008 and incorporated

herein by reference

15 Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Form 8-K dated February 12 2009 filed February 13 2009 and incorporated

herein by reference

16 Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Form 8-K dated February 25 2009 filed March 2009 and incorporated

herein by reference
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17 Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Form 10-Q dated February 28 2009 filed April 14 2009 and incorporated

herein by reference

18 Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Form 10-Q dated May 31 2009 filed July 15 2009 and incorporated herein by

reference

19 Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Form 10-K dated August 31 2009 filed November 25 2009 and incorporated

herein by reference

20 Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed December 29 2008 and incorporated

herein by reference

21 Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Form 10-Q dated November 30 2009 filed January 14 2010 and incorporated

herein by reference

22 Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Form lO-Q dated February 28 2010 filed April 14 2010 and incorporated

herein by reference

23 Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Form 10-Q dated May 31 2010 filed July 15 2010 and incorporated herein by

reference

24 Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Form 8-K dated August 2010 filed August 2010 and incorporated herein

by reference

25 Previously filed as an exhibit to Registrants Form 8-K dated August 24 2010 filed August 27 2010 and incorporated

herein by reference
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused this report

to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

EMTEC INC

Dated November 24 2010 ByIs Dinesh Desai

Dinesh Desai

Chairman Chief Executive Officer and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following persons on

behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

/s/Dinesh Desai Chairman Chief Executive Officer and President Principal November 24 2010

Executive Officer

Dinesh Desai

Is/Gregory Chandler Chief Financial Officer Principal Financial Officer and November 24 2010

President of Emtec Global Services Director

Gregory Chandler

Is/Stephen Donnelly Executive Viºe President November 24 2010

Stephen Donnelly

Is/Sam Bhatt Chief Accounting Officer November 24 2010

Principal Accounting Officer

Sam Bhatt

Is/Brian McAdams Director November 24 2010

Brian McAdams

Is/Gregory Cowan Director November 24 2010

Gregory Cowan

Is/Robert Mannarino Director November 24 2010

Robert Mannarino
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EXHIBIT 31.1

Dinesh Desai certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Emtec Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading with

respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present
in all

material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in

this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control over financial reporting as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is

made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to

be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation

of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based

on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during

the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons performing the

equivalent functions

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and report financial

information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date November 24 2010

Is Dinesh Desai

Dinesh Desai

Chairman Chief

Executive Officer and President

Principal Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

Gregory Chandler certifSr that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Emtec Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrne statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading with

respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in

this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial reporting as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and lsd-l5f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is

made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to

be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation

of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based

on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during

the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons performing the

equivalent ftmctions

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and report financial

information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date November 24 2010

is Gregory Chandler

Gregory Chandler

Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Emtec Inc the Company on Form 10-K for the period ending August 31 2010

as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report Dinesh Desai Chief Executive Officer

of the Company certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and result of

operations of the Company

Is Dinesh Desai

Dinesh Desai

Chief Executive Officer

November 24 2010



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Emtec Inc the Company on Form 10-K for the period ending August 31 2010

as flied with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report Gregory Chandler Chief Financial

Officer of the Company certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and result of

operations of the Company

Is Gregory Chandler

Gregory Chandler

Chief Financial Officer

November 24 2010
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EMTEC INC
Corporate Directory

Board of Directors Dinesh Desai Chairman

Gregory Chandler

Robert Maimarino

Gregory Cowan

Corporate Management Dinesh Desai

Chairman ChiefExecutive Officer

and President

Gregory Chandler

ChiefFinancial Officer and

President of Emtec Global Services

Sunil Misra

ChiefStrategy Delivery Officer

Brian Mandel

Executive Vice President Sales

Ronald Seitz

Executive Vice President Client Services Education

Stephen Donnelly

Executive Vice President Business Planning and Analysis

Human Resources and Corporate Development

Sam Bhatt

Vice President Finance

Additional Information Corporate Headquarters

for Shareholders 11 Diamond Road

Springfield NJ 07081

973 376-4242

www.emtecinc.com

Share Information

Electronic Bulletin Board ETEC

Transfer Agent

Zions Bank

South Main Street 12th Floor

Salt Lake City UT 84111

SEC Filings

Copies of documents file by EMTEC are available without charge by

contracting EMTEC or by assessing the SECs EDGAR web site

www.sec.gov

Investor Relations Inquiries

Please direct all inquiries to JoIm Howlett 908 338-0043 or

John Howlett@emtecinc.com
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